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Report to Members
For the year ended 31 May 2022

The Board presents its report bo the members together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Delaitte LLP
{"the LLP') and its subsidiary undertakings (together ‘the Group') for the year ended 31 May 2022,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of professional senvices, There were no significant chianges in these
activities during the year,

Legal structure
Thi LLP is incorporated in the UK as a limited lability partnership under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act 2000,

The LLP [together with its subsidiaries) is the UK affiliate of Delolite NSE LLP ["Deloitte NSE'). Deloitte M5E Is a member firm
of Deboitte Towche Tohmatsu Limited ("OTTL'), a UK private company limited by guarantee. OTTL and each of its
member firms are legally separate and independent entities. Deloitte NSE, with affiliaves in countries across Europe and
the Middle East, is a holding entity and does not carry out any trade,

Governance

The governance of the Group comprises:

*  The UK Senior Partner and Chief Executive and the Executive Group who are responsible for managing all aspects of
the Group's business, including the development and delivery of services, the development of Group's policies and
strategic direction, the management of the Group's financial performance and the development and implementation
aof the Group's talent goals.

& The UK Oversight Board ["UKOR') who oversses how the UK practice meets its UK regulatorny and legal responsibidlitices,
including certain requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code as they relate to the UK business as a whole, In
particular, the UEQEB's focus is om securing the reputation of the UE business, ensuring material risks are managed and
controfled, overseeing how the UK business meets its public Interest responsibilities, and reducing the risk of firm
failure, It is also respansible for overseeing financial reporting matters for the UK business.

= The Auvdit Governance Board ("AGB') which was established on 1 January 2021 and comprises a majority of Audit
Mon-Executives including the Chair. The AGE is responsible for providing independent oversight of the Group's UK
audit business, with a facus an the policies and procedures for improving awdit quality. This includes ensuring people
in the audit business are focused above all on the delivery of high-guality audits in the public interest; and oversight of
the policies and processes for ensuring audit partner remuneration and promaotions reflect their contribution to audit
quality. The AGE and UEQOR work alongside each other to ensure the Group's UK practice meets the requiremenits of
the Audit Firrmn Governance Code and other regulatory and legal requirements.

* Tha UK and Swiss Partnership Councll ["Partnership Council’) which is responsibde for ensuring fairmess and equity
between members and falrness in the implementation of Deloitte M5E policles and strategies. The Partnershig Council
is also the body that undertakes soundings 1o assist in the selection of candidates for election to the Delaitte NSE
Board and appointment to the robes of UK Senior Partner and Chief Executive and Swiss Chief Executive.
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Report to Members
For the year ended 31 May 2022
Governance (continued)

Dedoitte NSE's governance structure consists of the Deloitbe NSE Board, Deloitte MSE Executive, Geography govermancoe
bodies and Geography Executives (the Group’s UK and Swiss practices are both Geographies), underpinned by the Deloitte
MSE Partnership Agreement.

The Defoitte NSE Board is the primary governance body for the whole of Deloitte MSE, responsitde for ensuring high
guality govarnance and stewardship of Deloftte NSE. The Deloitte MSE Board works with the Daloltte NSE Executive to set
and approve the long-term strategic objectives of Deloitte NSE and the markels in which [t operates. It oversees the risk
appetite in each area of the business and is responsible for the oversight of the Executive function

The Chief Executive and Executive Group of each Geography in which the Group operates are responsible for day-to-day
management of thelr Geography, consistent execution of Delodtte N5E's strategy and development of local policies and
strategles,

Designated members

The designated members |as defined in the Umited Uabllity Partnerships Act 2000) of the LLP during the year wera:
Richard Houston, Stephen Griggs and Donmna Ward.

Members' capital

The Group Is financed through a combination of members' capltal, undistributed profits, tax reserves and borrowing
faciities.

The rate per unit of members' capital contributions is determined by the Deloitte NSE Board, with input from the UK
Senior Partner and Chief Executive, having regard to the working capital needs of the business. The amount of each
individual member"s capital contribution is caloulated by reference to his or her units each financial year and is repayable
following the mermber's retirement. Members' capltal was £266 million at 31 May 2032 (2021 £116 million}.
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Report to Members
For the year ended 31 May 2022
Members' profit shares and drawings

The allocation of profit is at the discretion of the Deloitte MSE Board in accordance with the formal member rermuneration
procedures in place. Each member shares in profit based on the proportion of units alfocated to them, Members' share of
profits is based upon a comprehensive evaluation of their individual and team contribation to, among others, quality, risk,
performance, and leadership, Member performance is evaluated in all competencies, beginning with the N5E Board's
approval of the profit-sharing strategy proposed by the NSE Senior Partner and Chief Executive and concluding with the
HSE Board's review of the recommended unit afllocation and equity group for each individual member. The Auwdit
Hon-Executives review and advise on the compensation, evaluation and premotion of members of the Audit business on
an anonymized basis to test the robustness of the member remuneration and promotion process and its inkage to audit
quality. This waork is undertaken in conjunction with a N5E Board sub-committee, which makes the final recommaendations
on compensation in line with Deloitte MSE"s policies.

Monthly deawings represent an advance of a portion of profit during the financeal year, taking inta account the need to
maintain sufficient funds to settle members” income tax liabilities and to finance the working capital and other needs of
the business, The UK Senior Partner and Chief Executive sets the level of members’ monthly drawings, with the approval
of the Deloitte N5E Board, Tax retentions are paid to HM Revenue & Customs on behalf of members with any excess being
released to members, as appropriate. Where a member's drawings exceed the actual profit allocation during the year, the
net amount due from the member is included under current assets in amounts due from members, If the profit allocation
exeeeds the members' drawings, the pet amount is included under eurrent liabilities within amounts due to members.
This number is determined on a member-by-member basis, The amounts dug to or from members that retire during the
current year are ciassified on the same basis,

(Going concern

The UK Executive Group and the UKDE has, at the time of approving these financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the LLP and the Group will be able to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future. Thus, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements, See Note 1 in the financial
statements for further details,

The Group's ebjectives, policies and processes for managing its capital and financial risk management objectives and its
exposures to credit and Hgusdity risk are set out In Note 20,

Environmental and Sustainability

The Group rermains committed to WorldClimate, a plan originally launched in 2021 bo achleve net zero and drive
responsible cimate choices within the firm and beyond, To this end, the Group has set and shared ambitious goals that
touch on every aspect of the firm to guide the actions its people are taking with clients, allianoe partners, suppliers and
other stakeholders,

The Group has demonstrated its commitment to sustainability by working with the Science-Based Targets initiative ["58Ti%)
to set sclence-based targets to redwce greenhowse gas ["GHG') emissions in line with the Paris Agreements ambitions to
keep the world within a 1.5°C temperature increase, The SBTI provides a robust framework for setting GHG emissions
reduction targets based on climate scence and independently assesses and approves companies” targets. The Group's
spcific targets include:

*  Reducing business travel emissions by 50% per Full Teme BEquivalent ("FTE'} by 2030 from 2019 levels;
«  Sourcing 100% renewable energy for our buildings by 2030;
= Converting 100% of our fleet to hyvbrid and electric vehicles by 2030; and
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Report to Members
For the year ended 31 May 2022
Environmental and Sustainability (continued)

=  &7% of suppliers (by emissions) will have set science-based targets by 2025,

With employees increasingly returning to offices and business travel resuming the Group's energy consumption in 2022
increased by 6% and carbon emissions rose by 65% compared to the prior year, Conversely, sinoe tracking commenced in
2019 the Group has reduced energy consumption by 40% and carbon emissions by 33%.

A 31 May 2022, 100% of total energy consumption was 2ero-emissions, with BB% direct from certified renewable sources
and the rermainder covered by purchasing Energy Attribute Certificates and carbon credits,

The Taskforce for Climate Related Financial Disclosures report is aailable through the Delaitte Global annual report.
Further details on Deloitte NSE's environmental and sustainability podicies are included in Deloitbe N5SE's annual report. An
Energy and Carbon repert has not been Included within this report as it Is included within the group report of Deloltte
NSE.

Auditors

BDO LLP have exprassad thelr willingness to continee in office as auditor and approgriate arrangements have been put in
place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditors.

Statement on disclosure of infarmation to auditors

In s far as the members are aware, the auditors have been made aware of all relevant information.

Statement of members’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The members are responsible for preparing the Report to Members and the Consolidated Financial Staternents in
accordance with applicable law and regulation,

The Limited Liability Partnerships [Accounts and Awdit) [Application of the Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 require
the members to prepare financial staterments for each financial year, Under these regulations the members have elected
to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards and with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ['LASE’) and IFRS
Interpretation Committes ['IFRIC'Y Interpretations. Under these regulations the members must not approve the
financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
LLP and af the prafit of less of the Graup and the LLP for that period,

In preparing these financial statements, the members are required to:
« salect sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistenthy;
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state whether UK adopted international accounting standards, International Fimanclal Reporting Standards as issued by
the |ASE and IFRIC Interpretations have bean followed, sulsject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;

» prepare the financial statermnents on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group of
the LLP will continue in business.

B
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Report to Members
For the year ended 31 May 2022

Statement of members' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
(continued)

The members are responsible for keeping adeqguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Limidted
Liability Partnership’s transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Limited
Liability Partnership, and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Limited Liability
Partnerships [Accounts and Audit) |Application of the Companies Act 2006} Regulations 2008, They are also respansible
for safeguarding the assets of the Limited Liability Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other [rregularities.

Financial statements are published on the Limited Liability Partnership’s website in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in
other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Limited Liability Partnership's wabsite is the respansibiity of the
members. The members' responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein,

These respansibilities are fulfilled by the UKOB on behalf of the members.

The UKOB confirms that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing these financial statements,
Signed on 26 September 2022 on behalf of the UKOE by:

L . ____h:‘::
Richard Houston
UK Senior Partner and Chief Executive
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Deloitte LLP

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Opinion on the financial statements

In our apinian;

» the financial stabements give a tree and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Limited Liability Partnership’s
affairs as at 31 May 2022 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

= the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UE adopted international accounting
standards and with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ['LASE') and IFRS Interpretation Committee |'IFRICT Interpretations;

# the Lirmited Liakdility Partnership's financial staterments hawve been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted
international accounting standards as applied in accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 applied to
limited liability partnerships by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Sceounts and Audit) (Application af the Companies
Act J006) Regulations 2008 and with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 1ASE and IFRIC
Interpretations; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 appled
to limived Hability partnerships by the Limited Liability Partmerships [Accounts and Audit) (Application of the
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008,

Wi have audited the financial statements of Daloitte LLP (the Limited Liability Partnership’) and its subsidiaries {tha
Growp'] for the year ended 31 May 2022, which comprise the Consolidated Inceme Statement, Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheets, Staternents of Changes in Eguity, Cash Flow Statements, and Motes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting palicies, The financial reporting framework that has
bewn applied in their preparation is applicable Ll and UK adopted international accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 1ASE and IFRIC Interpretations, and as regards the Limited Liakility
Partnership financial statements as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 applied to limited
Habllity partnerships by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Auwdit) [Application of the Companies Act
2006} Regulations 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (154 {UK]] and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group and the Limited Liability Partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we hanve fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Deloitte LLP

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Members' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropeiate.

Bazed on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to avents or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Umited Uabdlity Partnership's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
S,

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Members with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this repodt.

Other information

The Members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Report to Members and Consolidated Financial Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
therean, Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and, excepl to the exient
otherwise explicithy stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therean,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially
imconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to
e materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsisbencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rse to a matenal misstatement in the financial statements themselves, IF, based on the
wark we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

‘We have nothing to regort In this regard.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Deloitte LLP

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting as applied to limited liability partnerships

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies &ct 2006 as applied to
lirnited liability partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Limited Liability Partnership, or retwrns adeguate for our audit
hawve not been received from branches not visited by us; or

& the Limited Liakility Partnership financial staterments are not in agreament with the accounting records and returns; of

e wi have not recened all the information and explanations we require fof our sudis

Responsibilities of Members

As awplained more fully in the Statement of members' responsibllities in respect of the financial statements sat out on
pages 4 to 5, the Members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fadr view, and for such internal contrel as the Members determing is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Members are responsible for assessing the Group's and Limited Liability
Partnership’s ability to continue as a poing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the poing concern basis of accounting unleds the Members either intend to liguidate the Group oF Limited Liability
Partnership or to cease aperations, ar have no realistic alternative but to do 5o,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an awdit conducted in accordance with 1545
(UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from frawd or error and are
considered material If, individually or in the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Deloitte LLP

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

¥ i } ¥ ol L % § i o ¥ 2 eI
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Irregularities, including fraud, ars instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We desipn procedures in line
with our responsibilities, owtlined above, to datect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extant to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including frawd is detailed balow:

» Wi gbtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to Deloitte LLP and
determined the most significant laws and regulations to be;

¢ Thowe that relate o the reporting Tramework (UK adopted international aceounting standards and with
International Financlal Reporting Standards as issued by the 1A5B and IFRIC Interpretations).

= Laws and regulations relating to employes matters such as health and safety, equality, bribery and
COTuplion practices,

= HAelevant tax compliance regulations in the jurisdictions in which the entity operates,

= YW understood how Deloitte LLP Is complying with the relevant legal and regulatory frameworks by making enguiries
of management and those charged with governance, internal audit and those responsible for legal and compliance

proceduras. We corroborated our enguiries through owr revew of board minutes, legal correspondence and
correspendence received from regulatory bodies and we agreed the financial statement disclosures through to
underlying supporting documentation.

= We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and Limited Liability Partnership’s financial statements to material
misstatement, induding how fraud might cccur by meeting with management within various parts of the business to
understand where it is considered there was a susceptibility of fravd. We also considered potential fraud drivers
including financially linked performance targets or other pressures, opporunity, and personal or corporate
motivations, ‘We obtalned an understanding of the programmes and controls that the Group and Limited Liability
Partnership has established to address risks identified, of that otherwise prevent, deter and ditect frawd; and how
senior management monitors those programmes and controls. Where the risk was considered to be higher, we
performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These procedures included besting manual journads
by identifying journals which met a defined criteria and corroborating these on a sample basis through to supporting
documentation and management explanations and testing key areas of estimation uncertalnty or judgement, for
example: valuation of amounts to be billed to custamers for which we sampled projects using o risk based approach
and assessed the wear end position on these by agresing to related supporting evidencoe, and valuation of the defined
benefit scheme and annuities obligations for which we consulted with external experts 1o gain an understanding of the
estimates and judgements used and assessed the reasonableness of these in the context of our understanding of the
entity and its environment

= We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
rmembers and remained alert to any indications of fraud or mon-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the
audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Deloitte LLP

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising
that the risk af not detecting a material misstatement due to frawd is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from errof, as fravd may invelve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the aedit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with
laws and regulations s from the events and transactions reflected In the financial statements, the less likely we are to
becarne aware af it.

A further description of our responsibilities is  available oa the Financial Reporting Councils  website  at:
https:/ fwarw fro.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Limited Liability Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied by Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of the
Cormpanles Act 2006) Regulations 2008, Ouwr audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Limdted
Liabllity Partnership’s members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose, To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ather than the
Limited Liakility Partnership and the Limited Liability Partnership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.,

DocuSigned by:

Mek (artur—Prpy

B74585C2373744A...

Nicholas Carter-Pegg (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutary Auaditor
Lamicdan, UK

26 September 2022
BOO LLP is a limited liakility partnership registered in England and Wales [with registered number OCI05127).
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 May 2022

‘million Maotes 20232 2021
Revenue 3 4540 4,491
Opearating expenses

Staff costs 4 {2.287) {1,971}
Depreciation and amorisation 8,9, 10 {126) (151}
Other operating expenses 5 [1,687) [1,645)
Profit on disposal of restructuring practice 21 . 184
Oparating profit 840 08
et finance expense [ 146]) {37}
Share of profit of joint venture and associates accounted for using the equity method 11 3 5
Profit befone tax and members’ capital profit share a7 ET6
Tax expense in corporate subsidinries Fi {28} 132}
Profit before members' capital profit share 63 a4
bembers’ capital profit share charged as an expense 21 = 1136}
Profit for the year 764 TR
Antributable to:
Owmners of the Group 769 TOE
TE9 TOE

Profit for the year of the Group is impacted by annuities for former and current members [2022: a credit of £16 million;
2021: acharge of £102 million). See Mote 17.

The notes on pages 18 to S0 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income

For the year ended 31 May 2022

“millian Hotes 2023 2021
Profit for the year 768 Toe
iterns that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss:

Re-measurements of defined benefit pension schemes 19 Bl 126}

Changes in minimum funding lability 19 [21) 33

Met gaing on equity securities designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income i3 i
Iterns that may be re-classified subsequently to profit and loss:

Cash flow hedge reserve 20 (1) {1}

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations g {4}
Other comprehensive income for the year B8 4
Total comprefensive income for the year B37 712
Attributable to:

Owmners of the Group B37 712

B37 712

There is no tax on any component of other comprehensive income for either year,

The notes on pages 18 to S0 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Balance Sheets

At 31 May 2022

Group Group LLP
£ 'millkon 2023 2021 2022
Aszets
Hon-current assels
Intangible assets | a7 110 27 a1
Progerty, plant and equipment 9 207 242 167 01
Right-of-use assets 10 620 637 565 579
Derivative financial instruments 20 21 11 21 11
Deferrad tax assets 7 i | - -
Investrments in subsidiaries and associates 12 - - B 3B
Interests in point venture and associates 11 20 20 - -
Other non-current assets 13 21 49 B2 az
1,048 1,072 B50 902
Currenk assets
Trade and other receivabiles 14 1,654 1,457 1,334 1311
Arnownts due from members 18 22 a B2 40
Cash and bank balances 16 608 418 437 31E
2344 1,925 1843 1,629
Total assets 3392 2.997 26593 2,531
Liabilities
Current liabilities”
Trade and other payables 15 1,298 1,093 B55 T80
Armounts due 1o members 18 - 13 - 13
Lease liabilities 10 56 0 46 &0
Borrowings 16 1 - 212
Provisions 17 &8 A1 B3 &6
Members' capital 18 10 4 10 4
1434 1,247 o974 1,135
Non-current liabilities’
Borrowings 16 110 100 110 100
Retirement benefit obligation’ 19 23 160 - &
Leasa liabilities 10 &34 613 Lary L5g
Provisigns 17 1,466 1,540 1,464 1,538
Members' capital 18 256 112 256 112
2 485 2,525 2417 2,315
Tatal liabilities 3923 3,772 3,391 3,450
et liabilities attributable to members (531) [775) [B58) (915}
Equity
Members' ather reserves 18 (531} [775) [Eag) (319}
(531) (775) (698) {9139}

The notes on pages 18 to S0 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Balance Sheets

At 31 May 2022

Group Group LLP

£ millbon 20232 2021 2022

Supplemental information

Members” interests

Members' capital 18 266 116 266 116
Members' other reserves 18 1531} [775) (638} {319}
Amouwnts due to members 18 - 13 - 13
Amaunts due from members 18 {82} [40) [B2) {40}
Total members’ interests [347) (BEa) (514} {830}

IMMW!MMH rhe pear gadpd A1 Moy 2021 an emount af £76m relahing do the UW Pevgion scivermid wod classified of @ gurrdal Nobiily,
During the curvenl ey, Ihe aksrsement of Ml boianee sl secantigenng and o was conciuded Tl @ nen-furmiad slassifcanion ihowd e biv oppdied,
Consppuially the prior pear comparotied had bedn resdofed bo olmisly this Falsdily o3 non-turreal in Bhese financial itafements

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Limited Liability Partnerships, the LLP has opted not
to present a separate income staterment and related nobes. The LLP reported a profit for the vear ended 31 May 2022 of
£817 million {2021; E665 millien),

The financial statements on pages 11 to 90 were authorised for issue and signed on 26 September 2022 on behalf of the
Members of Deloitte LLP, registered number OC303675, by:

Signed on behalf of the UKOE,
- s
3 - Ptz I A
Richard Houstan Donna Ward
UK Seniad Partner and Chief Exscut ve Chief Fimancial Officer

The notes on pages 18 to S0 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Statements of Changes in Equity

At 31 May 2022

Group Group LLF
Members' Members
athar Non-
reserves  controlling
{Note 18] interest Totol equity

Balance at 1 June 2020 (1,062} 20 (1,042) (1,218}
Profit for the year J048 - T08 GBS
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 - 4 58
Total comprehensive income T2 - 112 T4
Allocated profit in the year 18 (424} - (424} (424}
Deemed distribution to parent 22 1) - (1) {1}
Deconsalidation of subsidiary - (20) [20) .
Tramsactions with owners (425] (20} [445) 1425}
Balance at 31 bay 2021 (775] - [F75) {915}
Profit for the year Tes - a8 B17
Other comprehensive income for the year 68 = (] {3)
Total comprehensive income 837 - B37 El4
Allocated profit in the year 18 {532} . (592} {592}
Deemed distribution to parent i {1} - [1) {1}
Transactions with owners (553) - [593) {593}
Balance at 31 May 2022 (531} - [531}) {658}

The notes on pages 18 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Cash Flow Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Group Group LLP LLP

‘millian 2022 2021 2022 2021

Profit for the year 7649 708 317 665
Adjustments for
Tax expense in corporate subsidianies 8 32 - -
Depreciation and amortisation 126 151 110 123
Prafit on disposal of business (excluding transaction costs) = {192} ‘ {192]
Allacation of capital profits to members charged as an expense - 136 - 136
Met increasef{release) of impairment on financial assets 4 i7" 3 1
impairment of non-current assets i7 29 17 26
Investment income - - 1159} (95)
Loas on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 15 " 19
Met finance expense 46 a7 a6 51
Share of profit of jpint venture and associates 1] 5} -
[Decrease])fincrease in provisions [42) 98 {42] 95
Retirement benefit obligations 30 30 - 3
Other non-cash mosements 14 21 19 17
Operating cash inflows before movements in working capital 991 1,053 811 B4E
{Increaselfdecrease in trade and other receivables (165} 64 (25) 62
Decrease in provisions (1] (ra) {68 (68]
Decrease in retirement benefit 11049) (aa) (8] 150]
Increase in trade and other payables 141 S0 50 az
Cash pencrated by operations 792 1,017 70 874
Tax paid by corporate subsidiaries (20) (25] - -
Het cash inflow from operating activities 762 932 760 B74
Investing activities
Acquisition of business [net of cash acguired] (2} (38) - (15]
Investment income received - - 4 -
Purchase of investments i3 (3} (1) (1)
Purchase of intangible assets . (s} . (4]
Purchase of property, plant and equipment i25) i34] 23} 112}
Cash en deconsolidation of subsidiary - i8] - -
Procesds from sale of business - 207 - 207
Proceads an disposal of investmants - 1 - -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - . - 1
Capital re payments and profit distributions received from Associates 4 4 - .
Isswe of loans to DTTL network firms 1] - i1} -
__Repayment of loans by DTTL network firms 5 4 5 a
Met cash [used in)/generated by [nvesting activities {22} 128 116] 180

The notes on pages 18 to S0 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Cash Flow Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

Group Group LLP LLF
‘million 2022 2021 2022 2021
Financing acthities
Paymants to members (630} (560) (630) (S60]
Repayment of capital to former members (14} (24) (14) (24)
Capital contributions by members 164 5 164 5
Deermed distribution to parent (1} (1} (1} (1]
Mew borrowings raised 1! El - a5
Repayment of borrowings - (525] {70 (524)]
Lease settlement (payments)/proceeds - & - &
Principal element of lease payments (74) (64) 164) (52)
Interest paid {16} 117) {16) i17]
Met cash wsed in financing activities (570} i1,144) 1631} [1.132)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 10 - | -
et increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 170 (24) 113 (78]
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 428 452 18 L
B0 423 432 318
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise;
Cash and bank balances [Mote 16) 608 428 432 iig
608 428 432 318

The notes on pages 18 to S0 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

1. Basis of preparation

Basis of preparation

Deloitte LLP {'the LLP') is incorporated in the UK as a Hrmited llability partnershig under the Limited Liability Partnerships
Act 2000 ('the act') and is an affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP. Deloitte NSE LLP, & limited liability partnership incorporated in
the UK under the Act, is the ultimate holding and controlling party of the LLP [hereinafter, Deloitte NSE LLP and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the 'Deloitte M5E Group®). The LLP is registered in England and Wales, and the address of
the registered office of the LLP is 1 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3HO,

These financial statements consolidate the results and financial position of the LLP and its subsidiary undertakings
{together, the 'Groug’]. The parent entity financial statements present information abaut the LLP as a separate entity and
ek about the Group,

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of professional services. There were no significant changes in these
actiwities during the year.

Both the Group and LLP financial statements (the “financial staterments’] have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies &ct 2006, together
with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to limited liability partnerships. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Unived Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and with international Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the international Accounting Standards Board ['IASE') and IFRS interpretation Committes
{'IFRIC’) Interpretations [collectively “IFRSS), In presenting the LUP financial statements together with the Group financial
statements, the LLP is taking advantage of the exemption in Section 4084} of the Companies &ct 2006, as applied to
limited liability partnerships by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) [Application of Companies Act
2006} regulations 2008, not to present its indhvidual income statement and refated notes as part of these approved
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments,
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. All
accounting policles have been consistently applied to all the financlal years presanted.

These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterding (*E') because that is the currency of the primary econamic
enwironment in which the LLP operates. Amounts in these fimancial statements are rounded to the nearest millkon unless
otherwise noted.

18 | Consolidated Financial Statements 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern
These financial statements have bean prepared on a going concern basis,

Af 31 May 2022, total assets of the Group were £330 millien (2021; £2,997 million), and net liabilities attributable to
members were £531 million [(2021: £775 million).

et llabdlities attributable to members arise primarily as a result of the recognition in these financial statements of a
prowision for annuities ta former and current members of £1,444 million {2021 £1,501 million). The payment of such
annuities is penerally conditional on the future generation of profits and s payable over & number of years with £534
millian [30Z21: £493 million) expected to be pavable between 1 to 10 years, £258 million (X021 £245 million] betwesn 10
and 15 years and £652 million (2021: £764 million} payable after 15 years. The annuity provisions are unfunded, are
dependent on the future generation of profits and the annual payments are generally capped at 8% of applicable Group
operating profit before annuity charges, as defined in the relevant agreement inm any financlal year. The retirement annuity
scheme was closed to new entrants effective 1 June 2021,

In addition, in these financial statements, members’ capital totalling £266 million [2021: £116 million) is treated as a
fimancial liability. Capital is not repayable until the member retires or withdraws from the LLP. Members are required to
glve a minimum of slx months' notice for exiting the LLP, Upon exiting the LLP, a member’'s capital must be repald as soon
as practicable after the retirerment date.

A 31 May 2022, the Group's net cash position was £608 million [2021: £428 million} and the Group had undrawn facilities
of E766 million (2021: £917 million}. Refer to Note 16 for further details of the borrowing facilities. Note 20 includes the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital and financial risk management objectives and its
axposures bo credit and Bgusdity risk.

In its assessment of going concern, the UK Executive Group and the UEQR has had regard to all of the abowve, and also
considered the economic emvironment in the markets in which the Group operates, as well as considering plausible
downside scenarios. The financial modelling shows that the Group's financial position remains manageable in all
sCenaos.

Consequently, the UK Executive Group and the UKOB has, at the time of approving these financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the LLPF and the Group will be abde to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue toe adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies

The following principal accounting policies have bean consistently applied in dealing with items that are considerad
material in relation to the financial statements.

2.1 Significant accounting policies

Consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlbed by the LLP.

The financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of the LLP and entities controlled by the LLE.
Control |s achieved when the Group has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
imvalverment with the invedtes and has the ability bo use its power to affect its returns. The Group reassesses whether of
mot it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control,

Associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of
accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereaftar to recognise the Group's share of the
post-acquisition profits or bosses of the investee in the consolidated income statement, and the Group's share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the mestes in the consolidated statement of comprehendive income,
Dividends recenved of receivable from associabes and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment, Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investmient equals or exceeds its interest in
the investee, including any other unsecured kong-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incwrred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. The carrying amount of eguity-accounted
investments are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable,

Acquisitions

Acguisitions af subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method, Under the acquisition method,
the consideration transferred is measured at fair value which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
assets transferred and liabilities incurred by the Growp to the former owners of the acguiree in exchange for controf of the
aceuires_ Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. dentiflable assets acquired and labdlities
and contingent labilities assumed in a business combination are measured Initially at thelr falr values at the acgulisition
date,

Hon-controlling interests arise where the Group holds less than 100% of the shares in the entities acquired or, as a result
of agreements in place, is entitled to less than 100% of profits or losses arising. Non-controdling interests are measured on
initial recognition at their share of the relevant net assets.

Goodwill arises where the fair value of the consideration given for a business combination exceeds the fair value of such
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, Goodwill is capitalised and subject to an annual impairment review, For the
purpose of assessing impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows [cash generating units, of 'CGUs'). Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination. Any impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwrrencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the
functional currency at the rates ruling at that date. These translation differences are recognised in the income staterment.

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented |n the currency of the primary econormic
emwironment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial staterments, the results and
financial position of each Group entity are expressed in £, which is the functional currency of the LLP and the presentation
currency for the financial statements. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are transfated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of foreign operations are recognised |n ather
comprehensive income and aceumualated in equity.

Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily by delivering professional services to clients and audited entities {referred to as
‘customers’ hereafver), with the types of services offered being similar within each of its businesses namely Audit &
Assurance, Consulting, Financial Advisory, Risk Advisary and Tax & Legal, Each business offers a wide range of services and,
whien delivered to individual custormers, these are almost always bespoke in nature, However, the performance
obligations tend to be consistent from customer to customar and the ones the Group most commonly satisfios are;

«  External audit services

« Direct and Indirect tax compllance services

&  Technology salution design and Implementatéon
# Repofts on business of complianee issuas

*  Project management services

As a provider of professional services, the Group generally does not have obligations for returns, refunds ar ather similar
obligations, nor does it have warranties or other related obligations.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue [continued)

Revenue is measured as the fair walue of consideration received or receivable for satisfying performance obligations
contained in contracts with customers, including recoverable expenses incurred on assignments but excleding value added
tax. Recowerable expenses represent sub-contractor costs and disbursements incurred in respect of assignments and
expected to be recovered from customers. The amount of consideration the Group receives varies both service to service
and from customer to customer, reflecting the bespoke nature of the services provided., The consideration typlcably
reflacts the skills and experience of the individuals who provide the services as well as the availability of similar skills and
experience n the wider professional services market, These factors tend o vary from business to business, The
consideration the Group receives is typically based on one or more of four principal pricing mechanisms;

« Time and materials

¢  Fixed fea

« Contingent fea

*  Per transaction procesied

The Group adjusts its estimate of revenue throughout the contractual period of services, and for amounts which are
variable, such as contingent fees, at the carfier of when the most likely amount of consideration the Group expects to
recaive changas or when the consideration becomes fixed.

Most of the Group’s contractwal arFangements comprise a single performance obligation. For those contractual
arrangements that comprise multiple performance obligations, the transaction price 5 allocated on the basis of the
relative estimated stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation. Other than for contingent fee arrangements
which are constrained in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 15, in virtually afl contracts the Group has an
anforceable right to payment for services rendered and, given the bespoke nature of the services provided, recognises
revanue over time as such services are renderad.

The Group recognises revenue wihen it has satisfied performance obligations by transferring control of sarvices to clients.
The Group measures progress in satisfying the performance abligations as follows:

*  For time and materials arrangements, the Group is able to recognise revenue on the basis of time charged to date. This
output method approach wses the practical expedient in IFRS 15 with the amount recognised as revenue reflecting the
amaount that the Growp has the right to invoice to its customers,

« For fixed fee arrangements, the Group uses an input method based upon the wvalue of the senvices charged to the
engagement to date compared to the total expected inputs. Chargeable time for employees tends to be the most
signiificant input and this is charged to individwal contracts (and performance obligations) via timesheet reporting,
Revenues are recognised as employes time is used to provide the services,

= Contingent fees are typically recognised when the contingency is resohved,

= Transaction relabed fees are priced on a “per unit” basis, such as data storage or data processing fees, and are typhcally
recogrised as the underlying tramsactions or wsage take place, for the same reason as time and materials
AFFangerments.
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For the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue [continued)

The Group typically invoices its customers monthly or quarterly in arrears, or for smaller projects at the end of the
engagement, but payment terms do vary depending on the types of services being offered or for individual contractual
agreaments. When performance obligations have been satisfied, revenue b recognised and contract assets are
simultanecusly created. Contract liabilities represent amounts received for performance obligations which are not yet
satisfied.

The Group has determined that no significant financing companent exists in respect of its professional services as the
peried between when the Group transfers a promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that
gocd or service will be one year or bess.

] srfmrrmennee el
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The majority of services performed by the Growp are in respect of contracts with an expected duration of 1 year or bess
either because the goods or services are expected to be provided within a 12 month peried or because the customer
and/'or the Group has the right to terminate the contract without substantive penalty upon the delivery of written notice.
Armounts arising from such contracts do not require disclosure, In addition, for contracts where the revenue recognised is
based on the amount for which the Group has the fight to invalce, such amounts also do not require disclosure,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at their transaction price as defined by IFRS 15 and subsequently measured at
amortised cost less expected credit losses.

Trade receivables are recognised whan the right to consideration becomes unconditional and an invoice to the customer
i raised. The Group's customers, including fellow MNSE group undertakings and member firms in the Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited (DTTL) network, are required to settle invoices on invoice presentation or on such other date as is
agreed in the engagement terms for that customer, The Group's standard terms state that invoices are due for settlement
30 days after the invpice date and after this date invoices are considered past due,

Contract assets

Contract assets represent revenwes recognised im satisfying performance obligations where the Group's right to
consideration is conditional upon something other than the passage of time, such as the performance of other
performance obligations being completed in aceordance with the terms of the contract, or the final revenue amount being
agraed with the customer prior to amounts being billed. These amounts become uncanditional when performance
obligations are completed in accardanoe with the terms of the contract, or when the customer has agreed to the amount
of final billings, These amounts are reclassified as trade receivables when billed to the customer in accordance with the
agreed-upon contractual terms. Contract assets are disclosed as “Amounts to be bdled to custormers’ within “Trade and
ather receivables”. See Note 14,

Contract liabilities

Contract Eabilities arise when invaices are issued or payments are received from customers in advance of the Group
satisfying the performance obligations under the contract, These liabilities are extinguished and revenues recognised as
jor when) the Group satisfies the performance obligations. Contract liabilities are disclosed a5 Frogress billings” within
Trade and ather payables”. See Note 15,
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Taxation payable on profits of the LLP and other partnerships consolidated within the Group is solely the personal liabilicy
of the members and is, therefore, not dealt with in these financial statements. & retention from profit distributions is
made to fund the taxation payments on behalf of the LLP members,

The tax expense recognised in these financial statements represents the sum of the current and deferrad tax relating to
consolidated corporate subsidiaries. The current tax expense |5 based on taxable profits of these companies. Taxable
profit excludes iterns of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it Turther excludes ivems that
are never taxable or deductible, The liability for current tax is caloulated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax i the tax expected to be payabbe or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
labilities in the financial statements of the Group's corporate subdidiares and the correcponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax labilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
proftable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible termporary differences can be wtilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets 5 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 5 no longer
proable that sufficlent taxable profits will be avaifable to allow all or part of the asset ta be recovered.

Deferred tax is caboulated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tas llabflities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the intention 5 to
setile the current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the inftial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business eombination.

Tax provisions are recognised for uncertain tax positions where a risk of an additional tax liabdity has been identified and
it is probable that the Group will be raguired to settle that tax. Measurement is dependent on managermeant’s expectation
of the outcome of decisions by tax authorities In the various tax jurisdictions in which the Group operates. This [s assessed
on a case-by-case basis using in-house tax experts, other Deloitte Member Firms internationally and previows experience.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

for internal use.

Costs directly attributable to the development of inbernally generated computer software are recognised as intangible
assets only if all the following conditions have been demonstrated:

{a) the technical feasibility of completing the intanglble asset so that it will be available for use;
(e}  theintention to complete the intangibde asset and use it;

e} the albility to use the intangible asset;

{d)  how the intangitle asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

2] the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the
intangible asset; and

{F} the akxility to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangibde asset during its development.

Directly attributable costs that are capltalised as part of the asset include empboyee costs and an apgropriate portion of
direct overheads. Other developrment expenditure that does not meet these criteria are recognised in the noome
statement 85 an EXpense as incurred.

Costs directly associated with the purchase or development of computer software are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and amortised on a stralght-line basls over the expected useful economic life of the software, typically three
to fourtesn years.

CiadmaEr rEla PR ridier ik tirarm T3] W EFa

Customer relationships, order books, brands and contracts recognised on the acquisition of a business are stated at fair
value on acquisition and amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful economic life, typically five o
seventEen years.

L LML AT
Goodwill & measured as the exeess of the sum of the consideration transferred ower the net of the acquisition-date
arnounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the Habllities assumed. Goodwill is not subject to amortisation.

Property, plant and equipment
Progerty, plant and equipment i stated a1 cost less aecumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loas.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of assets less their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Assal eluss Depreciation method and rate

Leasehaold improvements Lesser of useful life, or period of lease
Computer sguipmaent 3 -5 years

Fixtures and fittings 5+ 10 years

Wotor vehicles 4 years

The residual value, if significant, is reassessed annually in addition 1o uSeful lhes,

Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost less any recognised impairment boss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, bormowing costs capitalised in accordance with the accounting poficy, Depreciation of these
asseis, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment s derecognised upon disposal ar when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued wse of the asset, The gain ar loss arising on the disposal o scrappage of an asset is
determined as the differance between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income statemsent.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets including goodwill

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impalrment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by wehich the carmying amount of the assets exceed its recowverable amount.

Thar recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset
i estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amaount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Goodwill Is tested annuwally for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in crcumstances indicate that
goodwill might be impaired. Impaired goodwill is never reversed,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or OGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, bat =0 that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
wiould have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset jor CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
impalrment s recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents comprise cash in hand, on demand deposits, other short-term highly liguid investments and
overdrafts,

Fair value

Fair value i the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tramsaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements are categorised into levels based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement inits entirety, which are described below:

{a]  Lewel 1inpauts are quoted prices [unadjusted]) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

26 | Consolidated Financial Statements 2032



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

b} Lewel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are directly or indirectly observable for
the asset or ability; and

ich Leved 3 inpats are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial lfabilities are initially measured at Fair valug, Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liakilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liakilities,
as appropriate, on initial recogndtion. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acguisition of financial assets or
financial llabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss,

All recognised financial assets are measured subseguently in thelr entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
1] Debt instruments
Dt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost;

« the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

& the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount eutstanding.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss ['FVTPL'). The
amortised cost of a debt instrument is calculated using the effective interest method, The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the
debt instrument. All debt instrumants, which consist of loans and notes receivable within other non-current assets, are
subsequantly measured using armortised cost (disclosed as Financial assets at amarticed coct).

{H) Equity instruments

All investments are subsequently measured at fair value, The Group has made an irrevocable election in relation to the
equity investrments currently held {on an instrument by instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FYTOCK'), with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised im other comprehensive income and accurmulated in the Members” other reserves. The cumulative galn or loss
i niot reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity instruments, but instead, it is transferred to Members” other
FELEres.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in the income statement in accordance with IFRS 9 wnless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of iInvestment,

For equity instruments measured at FVTOC), exchange differences are recognised In other comprehensive income and
accumulated in Members” other resennes.
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basks the expected credit losses assoclated with [ts financial instruments carried

at amortised cost. The expected credit losses are updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial asset, The impairment methodology applied is as follows:

1] Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 3 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which wses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected eredit bosses, trade receivables have been grouped based on industry and days past due. The
contract assafs relate to amounts to be billed to customers and hawe substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts and therefore it has been concluded that the expected loss rates for
trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based an the payment profiles of sales over a period and the corresponding historical eredit
bpsses pxperienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to refleet current and foreard-looking
information on macroeconaomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables, The Group has
considered the economic conditions and the regulatory enwironment for each customer industry and considered the
geographical areas inwhich the Group provides services.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(i}  Amounts owed by Group undertakings and debt instruments

Historical data about incurred losses i utilised as a basis for assessing the expected credit loss. Debt instruments are
considered to have low credit risk, with no history of losses incurred, and therefore any boss allowance is limited to 12
manths expected bosses. There have been no significant changes in the economic conditions or the regulatory
amvironment within the geographical areas in which the counterparty exists and accordingly no adjustment has been
made to the historical loss rates in computing expected credit bosses,

il Amounts dus from members

Historical data about incurred losses s uwtilised as a basis for assessing the expected credit loss. Amounts due from
members are considered to have a low credit risk and therefore the loss allowance is limited to 12 months expected credit
boss, Due to the nature of the asset, the Group has assessed that mo loss allowance is reguired to be recogndsed for
aexpected credit losses on amounts due from members.

TP

Information developed internally or obtained from external spurces indicating that the counterparty is unlilkely to make its
contractual payments to (ts creditors, including the Group is considered an event of default by the Group as historcal
experience indicates that financial assets that meet the criteria are generally not recoverable,

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financlal asset have ocowrred. Evidence that a financial asset ls cradit impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

s signdificant fnancial difficulty of the counterparty;
# it i probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptey or other financial rearganisation; and

= for reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, the Growp has granted the counterparty concessions that
the Group would mot otherwise consider.

A -] F FiM
Lir irTo i
i N

The Group writes off a financial asset when there i no reasonable expectation of recovery. Financial assets written off
miay still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal adwice
wihere appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised (n profit or loss.

Financial Habilities are classified as either financial llabdities at 'FYTPL" or "amortised cost” at initlal recognition. All financial
fHabilities held by the Group are classified at arfmortised cost, other than derbvative instruments. Financial liabdlities at
amartised cost are initially measured at fair value net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost
wsing the effective interes method, with interest expense recognised on an effective vield bagis,
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Sy i I Wi i il Wl P

Financlal assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferrad to another antity.

Financial liabdlities are derecognised only when the Group's obfigations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liakdlity derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

AT Tl o A LT
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk including
cross-currency interest rate swaps, foreign currency exchange swap contracts and foreign currency forwards. The Group

recognises derivative financial instrurments at the date the contract is executed, Further detalls of derivative financial
instrurments are disclosed in Mote 20.

Derivatives are classified as FYTPL and initially recognised at fair walue and are subsequently re-measured to their fair
vialue at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or boss is recognised in profit or loss in the respective period, unless
the derivative is designated in an effective hedging relationship, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or
bopss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair valfue is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financial liability. & derivative is prosented as a non-current asset or a non-current Bability if the remaining
maturity of the instrumaent is more than 12 months and is not espected to be realised or settled within 12 months, Other
derivatives are preseated as current assets of current Babillities.

st TR duTate|

As permitted by IFRS 9, an election has been made to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of 145 39
rather than the new reguirements of IFRS 9 and to comply with the revised annual hedge accounting disclosures as
reguired by the related amendrments te IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,

Crevs-cufrency swaps are desipnated ad cash flow hedges of foreign currency risk of lssued fixed rate foreign currency
borrowings. Mo fair value or net investment hedging relationships currently exist, At the inception of the hedge
relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermaore, at the inception of
the hedge and on an ongoing basis, management assesses and documents whether the hedging instrument is highly
effective in offsetting changes in Fair values ar eash flows of the hedged item,

Mote 20 sets out details of the fair wvalues of and movermnents in the dervative instruments used for hedging purposes.

The effective partion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income, The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
im profit or loss and is included in other operating expenses.

The following possible sources of ineffectiveness in cash flow hedge relationships have been identified:
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For the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
= changes in the credit risk of the cross-currency swaps which are not matched by the hypothetical dervative; and

= changes in the embedded financing elemant included in the cross-currency swaps,

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss
in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, In the same line of the income statement as the
recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging relationship is revoked, the hedging instrument expires or s sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss is accumulated in equity and is
recognised when the hedged itemn is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is mo longer
profable of ocourring, the cumulative gain or loss accumudated in eqguity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group assesies whether a contract is or containg a lease, at inception of the contract. Contracts may contain both
fease and non-lease components, The Group has elected not to separate lease and nondlease components and instead
account for such contracts as a single lease. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and & corresgonding lease Habiliny
with respect to all lease arrangemeants in which it is the lessee, axcept for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
terrn of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets where the Group has elected not to (such as small items of office
furniture and equipment}, For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating cost on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Lease liabilities include the net peesent value of the following lease payments:
& figad payments (including in-substance fleed payments), less any lease incentives recaivable;

e yariable leace payments that are based on an index or & rate, initially messured vsing the index oF rate as at the
sommencernsnt date:

=  amounts expected to be payable by the Group wnder residual value guarantees;
= the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
=  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option,

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
Eiability, The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,  that rate cannot be readily
determined, which s generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate (IBR') is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions,

To determine the 1BR, the Growp:

* where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted o
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

*  wses @ build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group;
and
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For the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
=  makes adpstments specific to the lease, &.g. term, country, and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate which are not
imcluded in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
affect, the lease liabdlity s reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost i charged to the income staterment
over the lease period 50 as to produce a comstant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability for cach
period,

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost and comprise the following:

= the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability;

= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease intentives received;
= any initial direct costs; and

* restoration costs,

Where the Group incurs an obligation to restore buildings to their original condition upon vacating them, a provision is
recognised and measured under 1AS 37. To the extent that the restoration costs relate 1o a right-of-use asset, the costs are
included in the measurement of the related right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's wseful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The estimated useful life of nght-of-use assets is determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease,

Extension and termination options ars included in & number of property leases across the Groupg. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessar,

The Group remeasures the lease liakdlity and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset, when [a)
the lease term changes; [b) the lease payments change; or (c) a bease contract is modified and the lease modification is not
aceaunted fof a4 & separate lease. I the earrving amount of the right-of-use atet has been reduced bo 2ero, the
remessurement adjusiment i recorded in the income statement, In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced

by impairment losses, if any,
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) ai a result of a past event exists and it is
probable that a settlement of that obligation will be paid and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Frovisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle that obligation, at tha
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrcunding the obligation. Where a provision is
maasured using the cash flows estimated to cettle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the affect of the time valoe of money is material), With respect to professional liability clairms and
regulatory findings, a provision representing the cost of defending and concluding claims is made in the financial
statements for all claims and regulatory proceedings where costs are likely to be incurred and can be measured reliably,

When same or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recoverad from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it ks wirtually certain that reimbursement will Be received and the amount of the
recaivable can be measured Feliabby.

Retirement benefit obligations
The Growp provides retirement benefits through defined contribution schemes and defined benefit schemes.

Fayments to defined contribution schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions. To the extent that amounts remain unpaid at the balance sheet date, the amouants ane included
in trade and other payables.

The cost of providing bencfits under the defined benefit pension schemes is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains
and losses and the return on Scheme assets (excluding amounts included in finance costs] are recognised immediately in
the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to members’ other reserves through other
comprefensive intome in the period in which they ocour; such reserves are not reclassified to the income statement.

Met interest cost is calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset; net interest cost is
presented as a finance cost.

Changes in the present value of the defined obligation resulting from plan amendments o curtailments are recognised
immiediately in profit or loss as past service costs, A liability is recognised to the extent that minimum funding requirement
contribations payable will not be available after they are paid into the plan when the obligation arises, The retirement
bBenefit obfigation recognised in the balance sheet represents the deficit in the Group's defined benefit pension schemaes.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Members

The Group provides for retirement annuities payable to members swith a minimum of ten years” service in their capacity as
members. Such annuities are unfunded and are, generally, conditional upon the future peneration of profits. The
retirement annuities provision reflects the present value of obligations arising from semdices to date. Following the
requisite Deloitte MSE governance and a vote of the members of Deloitte LLP, the retirement annuity scheme was closed

to new entrants from 1 June 2021.

Any chamges in the annuities provision from changes in entitberments, financial estimates or actuarial assumptions are
recagnised in the income statement as part of other operating expenses, The unwinding of discount is presented in the
imeome staterment a5 part of finance cost.

The annuity liability for former and current members is included in provisions in the balance sheet. The portion of the
fability expected to be paid to former members within one year of the balance sheat date (s classified as a current
prowision, while the rernainder is classified as a non-current llabiiny,

The capital requirements for the LLP are determined by the Deloitte NSE Board, with input from the Senior Partner and

Chief Executive. Each member is required to subscribe to capital. The capétal contribution is calculated in relation to the
allocated number of units fior each member. Mo interest is paid on capital.

Cagpital is not repayable until the member retires or withdraws from the LLP. Members are required to give a minimum of
six months’ notice for exiting the LLP and the notice period must expire at the end of the financial year unless otherwise
agraed by the LLP. Upon exiting the LLP, a member’s capital must be repaid as soon as practicable after the retirement
date. Members' capdtal is classified as a financial liabilivy. Capdtal attributable to members who will e retiring within one
year after the balance sheet date i classified as a current liabiliny.

4l LT ¥ el g
¥ W otinn Are

The allocation of profit (s at the discretion of the Deloitte MSE Board in accordance with the formal partner remuneration
procedures in place, Each partner shares in profit based on the propartion of enits allocated to them. The Delaitte NSE
Board, an recommendation of the Deloitte NSE Chief Executive, considers factors which, amoang others, intlude the guality
of work and customer and management responsibilities in the determination of the allocation of prafits to the individual
members, The Audit Mon-Executives also have owersight of the policies and processes for ensuring audit partner
remuneration reflects thelr contribution to audit quality.

Prafits available for discretionary allocation are classified as equity and included within members” other reserves.,

[PEST peap—p—, ] R ey
i (Tl ale 18] ey

Payrments to certain members, which arise in relation to an employment contract, or a different forrm of contractuwal
obligation such as capital profits, have been charged to the income statement in the year,

o -dis
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Members (continued)

FHI 4

Current amaounts due to and from members are stated at their nominal value, as this approxirmates to the amortised cost.

Members are antitled to draw a monthly amount against their expected share of the profit during the course of the year,
Tha Senior Partner and Chief Exccutive sets the level of members” monthly drawings, with the approval of the Deloitte
M5E Board,

The final allocation of profits and distribution to members s made after assessing each member's contribution for the
year and once the annual financial statements are approved. Unallocated prolits are included in reserves within members’
other resened in equity.

Whore a member's drawings exceed the actual profit allocation during the year, the net amount due from the member is
inclwded under current assets in amounts due frorm members. If the profit allocation exceeds the members’ drawing, the
net ameount is included under current Habilities within amounts due to members. This number is deterrnined on a
member-by-member basis. The amounis due to or fram members that retired during the eurrent year are elassified on the
sarme basis,

2.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation

The pregaration of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and Kabllites and the disclosure of contingent assets and
Habilities. Estimates and judgements are continually evalusted and are based on historical expetience and expectationg of
future events that are considered reasonable in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimated,

The principal judgements and key sources of estimation that could have a significant effect upon the financial results
relate to the following:

Critical judgements made in relation to the Group

Determining the number of performance obligations in the contractual arrangements with the Group's customers
somaetimes involves significant judgement, Whilst the Group's contractual arrangements often contain extensive details in
relation to the goods or services to be provided, in many cases these are considered to comprise a single performance
abligation. Even when multiple deliverables are to be provided to a customer these are often judged to be a single
performance obligation elther because there is a significant service of integration performed by the Group in delivering
these services of because the services represent a series of substantially similar services all recognised ever time (for
example, the provision of multiple intermal audit reports under an internal outsoursing eontract).

if performance obligations were deterrnined differently, then this could affect both the timing and extent of revenue
recognised in a financial period, Where the Group are delivering multiple performance obligations, these are often
delivered at the same time, so the determination of what performance obligations exists has limived practical impact on
thi accounting for revence, See Note 3 Revenue.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation (continued)

Key sources of estimation identified for the Group

Revenue stage of completion

In determining revenue on customer engagements, management makes cortain estimates as bo the stage of completion of
those engagements. Management estirmates the remalning time and external costs to be incurred in completing the
engagements and the customer's willingness and ability to pay for the services provided. A different assessment of the
outturn on an engagement may result i a different value being determined for revenue and also a different carnging
value being determined for unbilled revenwe for custemer work. & 5% movement in Amounts o be Billed to Customers
[Groug: £711 rillion at 31 May 2022) would result in a change in Group revenue of £36 milllon.

Retirement benefit obligation

The pension liabilities in respect of the UK and Swiss defined benefit schemes have been mdependently valuved, The
fiahilities for the defined benefit schemes are sensitive to movements in the related actuarial assumptions, in particular
those relating to discount rate, mortality and Iinflation. Further detalls of the estimates and assurnptions are set out in
Hote 19. The Group continues to revies these assumptions against experience and market data and adjustrments will be
made in future periods where appropriate.

Provision for member annuites

The Group has used certaln assumptions in determindng the value of the provision for retirement annuities. The labdities
disclosed for member annuities are sensitive to movements in the future profit assumptions and the related actuarial
assumptions, in particular those relating to discount rate, inflation rate and mortality. Further details of the estimates and
assumptions are set out in Mote 17. The Group will continue to review these assumptions against the Group's experience
and market data, and adjustments will be made in future periods where appropriate.

Provision for claims and regulatory proceedings

The liabilities disclosed for claims and regulatory proceedings are determined by assessing the probable outcome of claims
and regulatory proceedings and estimating the level of costs likely to be incurred in defending and concleding these
matters. Further details of the estimate are set out in Nate 17,

2.3 Change in accounting policy

[ Farina f {ERS Interorerations Cormrmid I:-'::._ gecisian and nEw account 5 Ay
As of 1 June 2021, the Group revised its accounting policy in relation to wpfront configuration and customisation costs
incurred in implementing Software-as-a-Service arrangements in response to the IFRS Interpretations Committee agenda
decision clarifying how |FRS Standards apphy to these types of arrangements, The new accounting policy i presented
below,

The impact of changing the accounting golicy has resulted in the recognition of a portion of the related intangible assets
as an expense (E& million, see Note B). Prior year numbers have not bean restated because the impact is immaterial.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Change in accounting policy (continued)

FOFTWAOre- 0% -0-S0000F | 005 | Ofrangernent

Saafh arrangements [service contracts) provide the Group with the right to access the cloud provider’s application software
over the contract period. The Group treats configuration and customisation cosis in implementing SaaS arrangements as
an operating expense and recognise these costs in the incorme statement as the customisation and configuration services
are received or, in certain circumstances, over the Saas contract term when access to the cloud application software i
provided. IF the Group pays the supplier before receiving those services, the prepayment is recognised as an asset, The
amaortisation of the prepayment is recognised as an operating expense over the term of the service contract,

Costs incurred for the development that enhances or modifies, or creates additional capability bo, existing o premise
systems and meets the definition of and recognition criteria for an intangible asset are recognised as intangible software
assets,

2.4 Amendments to IFRSs adopted by the Group
New standards that have been adopted in the current year but have not had a slgnificant effect on the Group ane:

«  Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 pune 2021 - effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021,

2.5 Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by the Group

In preparing these financial statements, the Groug has not applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that hawve
been issued but are not yet effectie:

«  Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Reference to the Conceptual Framework - effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022;

»  Amendments to A5 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerows contracts - effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022;

o 2018-20H annual improvements oycle: Amendments to fowr IFRSs' as a result of the 1ASB's annual improvements
project - effective for pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2022;

= Amendments b S 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use - effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 lanuary 2022;

o Amendments to 185 1 Presentation of financisl statements: Amendments on cdassification - effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2023;

s«  Amendments to 1AS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of accounting
estimate - effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023;

= Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial staterments and IFRS Practice Staterment 2 Making Materiality
Judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies - effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023;

»  Amendments o 1AS 12 Income Taxes; Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
effective for perinds beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2023; and

« Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Finamcial Statements and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Wentures-Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investar and its Associate or Joint Venture - effective date has yet
to e set by the Board, however, earlber application of the amendments is permittad.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by the Group (continued)

The Group does not expect that the adoption of the Standards [Bted above will have @ material impact on the financial
staterments of the Group in future periods,

3. Revenue

The table below thows the Group's rewenue from contracts with customers by business.

E millian 2022 2021
Audit & Assurance B26 55
Consulting 1,675 1,502
Financial Advisory BE2 B8
Risk Advisory 562 541
Tax & Legal 1,195 1,045

4840 4,491

The table below shows the Group's revenue from external clients disaggregated by managed territory.

E'million 2022 2021
United Kingdom 4,283 3,864
Switrerland Bl 610
Cithaer 15 17

4540 4,451

Detalls of the Group's and LLP's trade recesvables and amounts to be billed to cwstomers are disclosed in Note 14 and
progress billings in Mate 15

The Group has applied the practical expedient set out in IFRS 15 in respect of the presentation of the transaction price
allocated to partially or fully unsatisfied contracts with customers where the contract period is for a year or less or where
the right to consideration corresponds directly to the performance completed to date. As at 31 May 2022 there were no
material fixed price contracts with a duration greater than a year (2021: nil).
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4, Staff costs

Staff costs incurrad during the year in respect of the employess wera:

Group Group LLP LLF
' million 2033 2021 20232 Fliral
Salaries 1854 1.643 Q87 05
Social security costs 205 171 110 102
Pension costs (Mote 19)
Defined cantribution 1848 127 122 B3
Defined bernefit - current and past serdice cost an 30 - E]
2,287 1,571 12349 1,053

JSus'.'ﬂ.l'm:r|.r|n|:|‘|:|||:il.~su:l'i:lr.lnl.?.., woges, bonuses and employee benefits excivdimg pension ooste

The average number of members and empleyees, on a full time equivalent basis, during the year were:

Group Group LLp LLF

Number 2022 2021 2022 2021
Members LT 691 &2 3l
Client facing employees 15,851 18,163 11,305 10,778
Kon client facing employees 2,848 2,882 2413 2,415
23371 21,736 14,396 13, B84

bt LEP financis! shalements for e pear ended 31 May J071, sveroge emglopies for 2021 uabne sverstaled by B19 for Chent facing dmplayses, armd
338 for Now chent focing emplopees dee to the previows inclusion of cevfain empiopees of cdfer BTTL netweork firme. in thede francal stotements, J021
comparotives have been resfoded fo cornect for Ehis,
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5. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses incurred comprise:
£'million 20 21

Current and farmer member annuities [Note 17)
Annuities to current members

Current year charge 36 E
Actuarial (gains)flosses [15) i3
Annuities to former members
Actuarial [gains)floases [E7) 31
Total current and former member annuities [46) ED
Expenses and sub-contractor costs on customer assignments 1,131 1014
Irnpairrment charges on non-current assets (Motes 8, 9, 10 & 13) 17 28
Het reversal of impalrment lesses on financial assets - {7}
Other' 585 529
1,687 1,645

"Othey priarily compried BTTT subieriation fees 1T sty mos-isee Nonany pepments B members, eansultants’ colly, profetsianal el propedy coats
aad reclal expeake on dhort-teem paset net of cesearch ond divelnpment pxperdiure credits af Fall (2021 £2 millonl. & 322, Other aperating
exmprmses aleo fnckedes @ D49 milor charge i relation fo the ent of property keoses,

Fees and expanses payable to the Group's asditors, B0 LLP, are as follows:

E'DOO 2022 2021
Audit af LLP and Group financial statements 284 4B
Aiidit of subsidiaries’ financinl statements 343 342
Total audit fees 627 520
Services relating to the sale of the UK restructuring practice - S00
Other non-audit assurance services b1 65
Total non-audit feas 61 565

6. Net finance expense

Finance income:

Inberest income (1) {4}
(1) (4}
Firaince eaperse;
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts 6 6
Finance charges on lease liabilities (Note 10 11 12
Unwinding of discounts on prowisions {Note 17) 0 22
Ket interest expenze on defined benefit pension scheme obligations [Note 19) - 1
47 41
Met finance expenie A6 37
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7. Tax expense in corporate subsidiaries

Income tax payable on the profits of the LLP is solely the personal lability of the individual members and consequently is
ot dealt with in these financial staterments.

Certain subsidiary entities consolidated in these financial statements are subject to taxes on their own results,

£ "milllion 2011 21021
Current tax on income of subsidiary entities for the financial year 26 34
Deferrad tax movements 2 12}
Tax expense in corporate subsidiaries 28 32

The following table reconciles the tax expense at the standard rate to the actual tax expense;

E'millicn 2022 2021
Profit on ordinary activities of corporate entities before tax 142 143
UK Corporation Tax at 19% 23 27
Impact of iterms not deductible for tax purposes 1 1
Adjustment in respect of prior peniods o 7
tffect of different tax rates across the Group = 7
Total tax expanse 28 32

Taxation for other jurisdictions Is calculated at the rates prevalling in the respective jurisdictions.

At 31 May 2022, the corporation tax payable is E4 million (2021: E6 million) and is included within ‘Trade and ather
payables” in the balance sheet,

The Group's deferred tax asset of £2 million [2021: £3 million), is primardy related to temporary differences for property,
plant and equipmeant.

The Finance Act 2021 increased the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 25%, effective 1 April 2023, Deferred tax
balances on temporary differences as at 31 May 2022 hawve been measured at 25% where these are expected to unwind
post 1 April 2023. Changes in corporation tax rates are accounted for when substantively enacted.
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8. Intangible assets

Customer
redationships,

order books,

brands and

‘million Goodwill IT software contracts
Cost
A L June 2020 51 34 i3 11E
Additians 23 8 1z 43
Transfers from property, plant and equipmaent . 1 . 1
At 31 May 2021 74 43 45 162
Change in accounting palicy : (10) - (10}
AL 1 June 2021 ™ a3 45 152
Additions 2 . . 2
At 31 May 2023 76 33 45 154
Accumulated amortisation/impairment
At 1 June MI20 ] 20 17 EL)
Impairment charge - . 4 4
Amortisation charge - 4 5 )
At 31 May 2021 2 24 26 52
Change in accounting policy - {2) - (2}
At 1 June 2021 2 22 26 c0
Amortisation thlr‘!]! - -} 3 rs
At 31 May 2022 2 26 i) 57
et book value
Ax 31 May 2021 74 7 16 o7
At 31 May 2021 T2 19 15 110
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8. Intangible assets ({continued)

On 18 March 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of the shares of Etain Limited, a Morthern Irish Consultancy
practice with 67 employees. This resulted in the recognition af £2 million of goodwill in the year.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the OGU that is expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The allocation of goodwill to each of the Group's CGUs i5 as fallows:

‘millbon 20232 2021
Switrerland Consulting 17 17
UK Consulting a8 1
UK Tax & Legal i6 16
Other 3 3

74 72

The recoverable amount for goodwill has been determined based on value in use, being the present value of future eash
flows based on 2 to 5 year financial forecasts. Cash flows for the periods beyond existing budgets have been extrapolated
using long-term growth rates of between 2.1 to 2.7% (2021: 2.1 to 2.7%). The discount rates applied against the
anticipated future cash flows are based on an estimated weighted average cost of capital of 7.8 to 8.5% (2021: 7.3 to
TE).

A repsonable change in key assumptions used in assessing the goodwill for impairment would not have a significant
impact on the difference between walue in use and the carrying value,
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8. Intangible assets (continued)

LLP
Customaer
redationships,
order books,
brands and
i 'milllon Goodwill IT software contract
Cost
A L June 2020 5 i3 14 52
Additians 14 4 - 1B
Transfers from property, plant and equipmaent . 1 . 1
At 31 May 2021 19 38 14 m
Change in accounting policy : (10) - (10}
AR 1 June 2021 19 24 14 Bl
A 31 May 2023 19 28 14 Bl
Accumulated amortisation/impairment
At 1 June 220 - 18 & 25
Amaortisation charge - 3 1 4
Irpairment charge - - 1 1
Ar 3L May 2021 = 22 B 3
Change in accounting policy - {2) - (1]
At 1 June 2021 - 20 B 28
Amaortisation I:I'IIFE! - o 2 [
At 31 May 2022 - 24 10 34
Net book value
At 31 May 2022 19 4 4 27
At 31 May 2021 13 16 & 41

Ag af 1 June 2021, the Group and the LLP revised their scoounting policy in relation to upfront configuration and
customisation costs incurred in implementing 5aas arrangemaents, This followed from the IFRS Interpretations Committes
Agenda Decisions clarifying how IFRS Standards apply to these types of arrangements. The change in accounting policy
resulted in the recognition of £8 million as an expense in the income statement, being the net book value of the intangible

assets related to 5aas arrangements,

Ar 31 May 2022, the goodwill within the LLP reflects the business scquisitions attributable to, predominately, UK Tax &

Legal.
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9. Property, plant and equipment

Group
Leasehold Computer Fixturas and Motor Assets under

improsvements  equipment fittings  wehicles construction
Cast
At 1 June 2020" 255 L 83 3 48 620
Additions i 7 - 1 25 34
Disposals (21) {67] is] {24} (3) {120}
Tranafers 7 12 4 - (23) .
Transfers to intangible assets - . . - (1] (1}
Deconsofidation of a subsidiary [2) . . . (1) £}
Exchange differences [@) {3} i5) - (1) {18}
A 31 May 2021 Py 11& 77 - 24 512
Additions 3 17 1 - 4 25
Dizposals (28} (44} [16] - - (88}
Transfers 31 2 3 - [36]) -
Exchange differences 3 {2} 2 - - 3
At 31 May 2022 284 il a7y - 1: 452
Accumulated depreciation/impairment
AR 1l IIZIIIII'J 141 110 53 11 - 115
Depreciation charge 22 a3 7 2 . 64
Disposals (19} 167 (5] {13} - {104}
Deconsolidation of a subskdiary (1) - - - - {1}
impairment charge B 1 - - - 9
Exchange differences (7] (1} i5) - - {13}
At 31 May 2021 PSS TE £l ' - ara
Depreciation charge .t 25 & . - 51
Disposals (28} (43} [15] - - (886}
impairment charge (Mote 10) 11 - 2 - - 13
Exchange differences 1 {4} - - - {3}
At 31 May 2022 148 54 43 - . 245
Net book value
At 31 May 2021 136 a5 24 . 12 207
At 31 May 2021 131 40 27 . 44 242

Ifﬂ and oreuficigdid ﬂmmﬂ.ﬂfﬁﬂﬂr bafaneds ar ] luing 2000w avsrsraniy for Jampgolts dgaipment [y 58 milaal, Finfures and fRriage
{by £ mdfian] aad Legishald lmprovementd by 01 millan], dod t0 8 dlbete grnds in e Group diclatung whith invalved gradiing up addiiany alisdianed
with & boriasid comnbisalion Beteeen coRl oad deprediafion rathes than premsaling asl, A4 tuch the opeaing balaecrs foee Been restared, Thewr
resfalernents hove mo dmpoct on nef book vaelwes o 11 Moy J2T ond 222

Assets under construction for the Group mainly refated to [T costs of £& million and leasehold improvements of £4 million
12021 £34 million redated to Zurich office).
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9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

LLP
Leasehalkd Computer Fixtunes and Motor Asfets undér

improvements  equipment fittings vithicles construction
Cost
At 1 June 2020 265 144 63 23 EL L35
Additions - B - 1 3 12
Disposals (19} (57 (2] (24) {5} (109}
Tranafers 7 13 5 . (25) .
Transfers 1o intangible assets - - . - {1} {1}
At 31 May 2021 257 108 60 - 7 441
Additions 2 16 1 - 4 23
Désposals (20} (43} (9] = - (72)
Transfers - | - - {1} -
At 31 May 2022 238 82 61 = 10 392
Accumulated depreciation/impairment
At 1 June 2020 122 G EL] 10 - 265
Depreciation charge 17 9 7 2 - 55
Disposals {17} {57) (3) 12) . {83}
Impairment charge B 1 - - - 9
At 31 Moy 2021 130 &7 43 - - 240
Depreciation charge 16 23 5 - - A
Disposals (20} {43} (2 - : 72}
Impalrment charge (Mote 10) 11 - 2 - - 13
At 31 May 2022 137 47 41 = £ 225
Met book value
At 31 May 2022 102 £ 20 - 10 167
At 31 May 2021 127 41 256 - 7 201

Assets under construction for the LLP related to the costs of leasehold improvements of £4 million (2021: £3 milllen) and
IT costs of E6 million [2021: £4 million).

Capital commitments relating to property, plant and equipment contracted but not provided for at 31 May 2022
amountad to £4 million (2021 £3 million) for the Group and the LLF and related principally to leasehold improvements.
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10. Leases

Right-of-use assets

Movements in the right-of-use assets during the year were as follows:

Group

£ 'millian Buildings Equipment Mobor vehicles Tota
Cast

At 1 June 2020 642 12 3 57
Additions 131 3 5 138
Dizposals 110] - (1) {11}
Deconsolidation of subsidiary i3} - - {3}
Remeasurement and ather movements® 2 2] - -
At 31 May 2021 761 13 T 7a2
Additions 2 (] 42
Dizposals (38) : (1) (39}
Remeasurement and other movements® 10 a - 13
At 31 May 2022 768 13 12 TIE
Accumulated depreciation/impairment

At 1 June 2020 & 2 1 63
Depreciation charge 73 2 3 T8
Deconsolidation of subsidiary 1) - {1}
Irpairment charge 15 - 15
Dicposals {9} (1) {10}
At 31 May 2021 138 3 145
Depreciation charge 59 4 68
impairment charge 4 - - 4
Disposals {38) - 1] {39}
Af 31 pay 2022 163 g B 17E
Mt book value

Ar 31 May 2021 605 2 (] B20
At 31 May 2021 624 g 4 637

'mmmmmﬁnammm"ammm
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10. Leases {continued)

LLP

E'milllbon Buikdings Equipment  Maotor vehicles Total
Coast

At 1 June 2020 287 12 3 B0

Additions 125 . 5 130

Disposals 1] * (1) {11}
Remeasurement and other movements” 115]) (3] - {17}
Ar 31 pay 2021 687 10 7 T

Additions 2 6 38

Disposals {28) - (1) (29}
Remeasurement and other movemnents® 3 3 - 12

At 31 May 2022 F00 13 725

Accumulated depreclation/impalrment

At 1 June 2020 53 2 1 5B

Depreciation charge B0 z 2 64

impairment charge 15 - 15

Disposals (10] - - {10}
At 31 May 2021 118§ d 3 125

Depreciation charge 52 4 4 &0

Impairment charge 4 - - 4

Disposals (28] - (1) (29}
AR 31 May 2022 146 B (2] a0

Met book value

At 31 May 2022 554 (] 565

Ar 31 May 2021 569 d 579

Dther maverienty ntiude bake madifications.,

In the year ended 31 May 2022, impalrment charges were recognised for Group and LLP properties totalling £4 million in
respect of right-of-use assets. These right-of-use assets, along with asseclated leasehold improvements and flxtures and
fittings in Property, plant and equipment amounting to £13 millon {Mote %), have been impaired due to decisions made
during the year to exit all or part of these buildings. all impalrment charges are recognised in the income statement within

other operating cxpenies,
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10. Leases {continued)

Lease liabilities

Movements in the lease Habilities during the year were as follows:

Group

£ 'millian Buildings Equipment Mobor vehicles Tota

Ag 1 June 2020 603 g 3 Bl5

Additions 125 3 & 133

Finance charges 12 - - 12

Payments [71] 2] [E] e}
Remeasurernents and other movements 1 (3 - {1}
A 31 May 2021 670 B 5 623

Additions 30 1 (7] 38

Finance charges 11 . . 11

Payments (76} (5) (4) (85)
Remeasurements and other movements 40 a - 43

At 31 May 2022 675 8 7 B0

‘Other moverments intlude ose madificetions and foreipn exchonge movements,
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10. Leases (continued)

LLP

‘million Buitdings Equipment Mator vehicles Total
At 1 June 2020 553 E i 585
Additions 121 . ] 126
Finance charges 12 - - 12
Fayments [59) ¥ E] (643}
Remeasurements and other movements” (18] (3] - {20
Ar 31 pay 2021 609 5 ] &19
Additions 2 - 6 35
Finance charges 11 . . 11
Payments ; {67) {4 [4) {75}
Remeasurermnents and other movemants 40 E - 43
At 31 May 2022 622 d 7 633

e menverments nelude e madificetions,

Included in current llabdities 56 7 a6 &0
Inciuded in non-current liabilities 634 613 BBY 554
630 683 B33 L2 k]
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10. Leases {continued)

The maturity analysis (contractual undiscounted lease payrments) of lease labilities s presented in Mote 20.

The Group and the LLP lease buildings, equipment and vehicles, At 31 May 2022, the weighted average remaining lease
term is 12 years [2021: 12 years) for the Group and 13 years (2021: 13 years] for the LLP, Such lease arrangements
typically inclwde extension and terminaticn options which are exercised in line with business need.

Amounts recognised in the Income statement consists of:

Group Group Lup LLF

‘mifllian 2022 2021 202 2021
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets &5 78 &0 Bd
Impairment charge on right-of-use assets 4 15 4 15
Finance charges on lease liabilities i bl 12 11 12
Expense relating to short-term leases 2 3 1 4

At 3L BAay 2022, the Group and LLP is committed to Enil (2021; Enil) for short-term leases,

The total cash outflow for leases for the Group and LLP consists of fixed payments of £85 million (2021: £76 million} and
£75 rillion (2021: £64 millkon). There are i variable payments.

At 31 May 2022, the Group and LLP had committed to leases which had not yet commenced. The total future cash outflow
that not yet commenced was £15 million.

11. Interests in joint venture and associates

Group Group
‘milliban 2022 2021
Al June 20 22
Lthare of profit 3 L
Capital investment 1 2
Capltal repayment [4) {4}
Disposals - {1}
Impairment loss - (1}
Reclassification of investment . 13}
Ar 31 May 20 20

The joint venture and associates are listed in Mote 23, Mo jalnt venture of associate is individually material to the Group.
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12. Investments in subsidiaries and associates

The subsidiary undertakings of the LLP are sat out in Note 23, Movements in the investmants in subsidiary and assoclate
undertakings during the year were as follows:

LLP
Sulbsidiary Associate

‘millian undertakings undertakings Tota
Cost
At 1 June 2020 41 23 Bd
Dicposals - [14) (14}
Transfer from other non-current investments - B ]
A 31 May 2021 a1 17 SB
Subsidiary and associate undertakings placed into liguidation (30 [16) {46}
Disposals . (1) {1}
At 31 May 2022 11 - i1
Provision
AL 1 June 2020 2 23 25
Charge for year 1 - 1
Mhsposals - [24) 114}
Tramsfer from other non-current investments - & i)
At 31 May 2021 3 17 20
Subsidiary and assoclate undertakings placed into liquidation - [16) {16}
Disposals £ (1) {1}
At 31 May 2022 3 - 3
Met book value
Ar 31 May 20232 g - 8
At 31 May 2021 33 - 3B

A diseusaed in Mote 19, the collapse of the Pension Funding Partnership resulted in its component entities being put into
Hguidation during the year. Accordingly, the Group was deemed to no longer have control over these entities at 31 May
2022 resulting in their deconsolidation. This has resulted in the reclassification of the Group's equity interest in such
antities to 'Other non-current assets'.

Daring the year, Delodtte 15 Linited, an assodiate undertaking of the LUP, was put into valuntary liguidation. This process
resulbed in the LLP losing significant influence. The carrying value of Deloitte CI5 was Enil [cost of £16 million with a full

provision),
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13. Other non-current assets

Group Group LLP
Financial Flnamcial
Assets at Assals ot
Equity Amortied Eguity Amaortised
ineestmants Tatal investments Cast
At 1 June 2020 6 57 &3 -1 i3 A
Additions 1 3 i 1 3 4
fevaluation 2 1 3 2 1 3
Repayment - {4) {4) - [4) {4}
Transfers to investment in associates 3 (&) (5} - (8) (8}
Exchange differences - {7) 7] . [4) {4}
Ar 31 May 2021 12 42 o4 | 26 EL)
Additions 2 | 3 2 1 3
Subsidiary and associate undertakings
placed into liquidation a0 . a0 a0 . L
Disposals (1) (4} (5] i1) [4) {5}
Capital repayments - {5 i5) . [5) (5)
Exchange differences - 4 4 - 4 4
At 31 May 2022 a3 38 81 40 22 L]
Provision
Ag 1 June X020 1 g 10 1 7 8
Impairment charge - 4 4 - 4 4
Disposals - (1) 1] . . g
txchange differences - - - [1) i1}
Tramsfers to westment in associates - LE:1] i8] - [B) (B}
A 31 May 2031 1 4 5 1 2 3
Disposals (1) (4) {5} (1 [2) i3}
At 31 May 2022 = - = . = =
Net book value
At 31 May 2022 43 13 a1 40 22 [:¥]
At 31 May 2021 11 iB a5 a 24 a2

Equity investments include non-<ontrolling equity investments in non-listed companies, These investments were
irrevocably designated at FYTOC! as the Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature,

Inchuded within Financlial assets at amoetised cost are loan receivables from related parties with fiued rates betwean 0%
and 10% and floating rates between 1% and 2% abowve a reference rate. Repayment dates range between payable on
demand ane 20289 The carnying amounts are measured at amortised cost.
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14. Trade and other receivables

‘milllsan

Customer receivables 714 671 458 436
Due from DTTL network firms 122 78 63 45
Trade receivables 838 Fads 521 481
Amounts to be billed to customers 711 G608 517 4840
Arnounts owed by Group undertakings - - 223 rira |
Prepayments 7 B2 az 31
Othor receivables 30 i3 26 2B

1,654 1,457 1329 1271

The carrying amount of ‘Trade recefvables’ approximates to their fair value,
Loss allowance - Group

The closing loss allowances reconcile to the opening |loss allowances as follows:

Amounts to be billed to

Graop Trade receivables Eustomers

£ milllan 2022 2021 2022 2021
AL L June 19 27 3 5

Increase in loss allowance recognised during the year 4 12 1 -

Individually credit impaired receivables 3 5

Unused amount reversed - [21) - 2]
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable 4] [d] - -

Ar 31 May 22 19 4 E |

The lass allowancs a5 a1 31 May 2023 was determined a5 follows;

Tradé Receivables

Amounts to

Group 3lto %0 91 to 180 Mose than be billed to

£'milfion days days 1B1 doys Total  customers
Goss Carrying amount 454 305 ag 31 H458 715 1,573
Expected credit loss rate 0.58% 0.93%% 30E% 7.21% 0.56%
Collectively assessed loss allowancoe {3} (3} (2} (1] 19} (4] (13}
Individually assessed loss allowance - - 113) 113} - (13}
Total loss allowance {3) [3h () 114] {22) (4] i2a)
Met balance 451 302 BE 17 836 711 1,547
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14. Trade and other receivables {continued)

The loss allowance as at 31 May 2021 was determined as follows:

Trade Recelvables

Amounts to

GI";'f"'F_' dMdaysor 31to50 51 to 180 More than be billed to

£'million less days days 181 days Total customers

Gross carrying amount g2 286 a5 a5 T6B 611 1,314
Expected credit loss rate 0.56% 0.98% 3.17% 6. 18% 0.56%
Collectively assessed loss allowance 2) (3) (2] (1} (B) i3 {11}
Individually assessed loss allswance . . {11} {11} . {11}
Total loss allowance 12) 3) i2) 112} {13} 13 122}
KWet balance 380 283 53 23 Fa49 68 1,357
Loss allowance - LLP

The closing loss allowances reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

Amounts to be billed to

LLF Trade receivables customeart
£'million 2022 2021 2022 2021
At 1 June 14 1& 3 3
increase in loss allowance recognised during the year 3 ] 1

Individually credit Impaired receivables 3 3 -

Unused amaount reversed - (11} -

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable 14} 13) - .
At 31 May 16 14 4 3

The loss alfowance as at 31 May 2022 was determined as follows:

Trade Rece s mbles

Amounts to

LLP I daysor 31to90 91 te 180 More than be billed to
E"millbon less days days 181 days Tatal customers
Gross carrying amaunt 295 175 43 23 537 521 1,058
Expected credit loss rate 0.58% 0.93% 3.08% T22% 0.56%
Collectively assessed loss allowance (2) (2] (1) (1} (6} 14) {10}
Individually assessed loss allowance - - - {10} {10} - i L0}
Total loss allowance {2 (2] (1) {11} {16} 4] {20}
MWet balance 293 iv4 42 12 521 517 1.038
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14. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The loss allowance as at 31 May 2021 was determined as follows:

Trade Receivables

Amounts to
LLP. I daysor 311090 51 to 180 More than be billed to
£'miliion less days days 181 days Total customers
Gross carrying amount 241 182 46 26 455 463 548
Expectad credit loss rate 0.56% 0.98% 3.17% 6,18% 0.56%
Collectively assessed loss allowance (1) (2 (1) 2 (6} {3) 19}
Individually assessed loss allowance - - 18} &} - 18}
Total loss allowance [1) (2] i) {10} {14} 13 117}
et balance 240 180 45 16 481 450 41
Factoring arrangements

In the prior year, the carrying amounts of the trade receivaldes incleded amounts that were subject to a factoring
arrangement under which the LLP transferred relevant receivables to the Pension Funding Partnership. LLP continued to
recognise the transferred assets in their entirety because the LLP retained the credit risk due to 3 minimum asset value
guarantee provided to the Pension Funding Partnership, The amount repayable under the factoring arrangement was
presented as Borrowings, During the financial year ended 31 May 2022, the LLP purchased the factored trade receivables
from the Pension Funding Partnership for a consideration of £75 milion at which point the factoring arrangements
ceased.

15. Trade and other payables

Group Group LLp LLF
£'million 2032 2021 FiLEE 201
Frogress billings L 332 253 1%
Trade payables 35 22 23 10
Due to DTTL netwoark firms B7 63 59 38
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 4 118
Corporation tax 4 [ - .
Locial security and other taxes 115 105 B7 26
Aceruals 580 511 359 337
Other B3 54 71 32

1,298 1,093 BS5 TEQ

The carrying amount of Trade payables’ and ‘Due to DTTL network firms” approdmates to their fair value.

Group
Duiring the financial year ended 31 May 2022, £323 million (2021: £268 million) of the Group's £332 million (2021: E288

millian) price year recorded progress billings was recognised as revenue,

LLP
During the financial year ended 31 May 2022, £216 million [2021: £171 miflion) of the LLPs £21% million {2021: £176
million) prios year recorded progress billings were recognised as revenue.
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16. Cash and borrowings

Cash and bank balances comprised:
Group Group LLP LLF
E'million 2022 2021 2023 21
Cash at bank 148 123 7 13
Short-term deposits 460 305 425 305
608 428 433 31E

The carrying amaunt of ‘Cash and bank balances’ approximates vo fair value.

Borrowings comprised;
Group LLP
E'milion 2022 Mzl 2022 2021
Securad borrowlngs at amortised cost
Factoring arrangements {Note 14) = : = 212
- - - 212
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
Private Placement Loan Motes 110 100 116 100
Bank loans 2 1 - -
112 101 110 100
112 101 110 312
Group LLP
‘millian 2022 2021 2022 2021
Amounts due for settlemeant within 12 months i 1 - 212
Amounts due for settlernent after 12 months 110 100 110 10D
112 101 110 312
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16. Cash and borrowings (continued)

Private Placement Loan Notes (the ‘Notes’)

The coupons and maturities on the Notes are as follows:

SemiAnnua
ithe Year lsued Principal Value Maturity Coupo
Series B 2013 U55126 million 23 October 2023 4 .40%
Series C 2013 £10 millian 23 October 2023 4,16%

The weighted average interest cost of the Motes during the year was 4.38%. The Group and LLP have an option to prepay
at any tirme all, or any part [not less than 5% af the aggregate principal amouwnt of the Notes of all series then outstanding)
of the Notes at the principal (including accrued interest) plus a make-whole premium,

Furthermiore, upon the occurrence of certain events, the Notes can be prepaid at the option of Group and LLP or the
holder at the principal [including accrued interest) or the princigal plus a make-whole premium degendent upaen the event
that has ocowrred.

At the date of issuance of the Motes, the Group and LLP entered into crosscurrency swap agreements to aliminate the
variability in LIS dollar cash flows associated with the Series B Notes. The swaps expire in line with the Notes and are
disclosed in Note 20.

Other facilities - Group

A 31 May 2022, the Group had total facilities of £768 milion (2021: £920 million) with leading international banks, These

facilities comprised;

¢ revoling credit facilities totalling £715 million [2021: £849 million) of which £70 million expires on B May 2023 and
£645 million expires on 30 September 2023;

« gverdraft facilities of £51 milllon [2021: £69 milllon] which are indefinite; and

= amulti-option facility for £2 million (2021 £2 million) which expires on 31 December 2022,

The revolving credit facilivies carry an interest rabe which is the aggregate of the Sterling Owernight Index Average, or
SONIA, and & margin as well as utilisation fees when drawings reach certain levels, Commitment fees are payable on the
amounts undrawn,

Bank loans represent the Group's llability under the multi-option facility. The facility carrles an interest rate which s the
apggregate ol a contracted interest rate and a wtilisation fee. The weighted average interest cost of the bank loans during
the year was 3.4%. At 31 May 2022, £2 million (2021: EX million) had been drawn down against the multi-option facility,

These facilities are considered adequate to finance variations in the Group’s working capital,

Other facilities - LLP

A 31 May 2032 the LLP had total facilities of E725 million (2021; £879 million] with banks. These facilities include the
revalving credit facilities roralling £715 million described above and a £10 million overdraft facility which is indefinite. At
31 May 2022, Enil (2021: Enil) had been drawn down against these facilities, These facilities are considered adequate to
finance variations in the LLP's working capital,
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16. Cash and borrowings (continued)
Cash flow reconciliations

The tables below detail changes in the Groug and LLP's liabdlities arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes, Liabdlities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be classified, in the Group or LLP's cash flow statement from financing activities.

Lease Monm-current Current  Members'
£ millian fiabilities borrowings borrowings capital
Ag 1 June 2020 G5 112 495 135 (33)
Lease payments 176} 2 = = _
New borrowings raised - - 36 - -
Repaymant of borrowings - - [525) - -
Repayment of capital to former members - - - (24} -
Capital contributions by members : - . 5 .
Payments to membsers - . - (560)
Foreign exchange movements 112} [3) - -

144
At 31 May 2021 6B 100 1 116 {27)

Other non-cash movements - () - S66
Lease payments {85) - . - .
New borrowings raised . 3 1 E >
Repayment of capital to former membars = = E (14} =
Capital contributions by members - - = 164 :
Payments to memiers - - - - (630]
Foreign exchange movements - 10 = i =
Other non-cash movements 93 . . 575
At 31 May 2022 E00 110 | 266 (82]

%mmmummﬂemmmm'mmnmdmuﬂme
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16. Cash and borrowings (continued)

Lease Mom-currant Current  Members"

E'millian labilities borrowings borrowings capital 5
At 1 June 2020 SB5 112 686 135 (33)
Leasae payments =] - - - -

New borrowings ralsed - - 35 - -

Repayment of borrowings - - [524) - -

Repayment of capital to former membars : - . (24}

Capital contributions by members = - - 5 =

Fayments to members - - - [=1a141]]
Forelgn exchange movements - 112} (3] - -

Other non-cash movements ¢ 118 - 18 566

At 31 May 2021 619 100 212 116 (27}
Lease payments {75} - . = -

Repaymeant of borrowings - - [na) - -

Repaymant of capital to former members - - - {14} -

Capltal contributions by members - - - 164 -

Payments to members - x 5 - (630)
Foreign exchange movements - 10 - . -

Other non-cash movements i) . [142) - 575

At 31 May 2022 B33 110 - 266 [82)

rﬂn'urm—m-mmwmﬂﬁrtmmm%m‘quwpwmlMMm‘quﬂbtnﬂHqﬂlﬂuﬂ
o¥ocation of prodfif to memibers.

At 31 May 2021, the amount repayable under the factoring agreement (Note 14) was £212 million, During the financial
year ended 31 May 2022, the LLP repaid the debt for consideration of £75 million [being £70 million cash payment and £5
millizn promissory note). The remainder of the debt balance was waived as part of a series of transactions wnder the
agreerment between the ULP and the Trustees of the Deloitte UK Pension Scherme to unwind the Pension Funding
Partnership structure (Mote 18).
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17. Provisions

Group
Farmiér Currenk

v rmkeir membier Property  Profescional

annuitias annuities provitions fability claims
At 1 June 2020
Charge for the year - e - 29 &S
Additions - - g - 5
Transfer BE (86 . . .
Paid in the year [38) . [21 (20 {70}
Unused amount released - (11} - {11}
Unwinding of discount (Mote &} 13 9 - - 12
Actuarial losses 31 13 = 44
AT 31 May 2021 043 58 S8 47 1,606
Charge for the year . 36 21 57
Additions - - B - [
Transfer S0 {50} - - -
Faid in the year [41) - (&) [17] {66}
Unused amount released - . (a) (13) (17}
Urwinding of discount (Note 6) 18 12 . . L
Actuarial gains (67 {15) - - {82}
At 31 May 2022 a03 541 52 EL] 1,534
Income statement (credit)/charge
022 (49) 33 (@) 8 (12}
2021 44 58 [11) 29 120
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17. Provisions (continued)

Farmiér Currenk
v rmkeir mimber Property  Profescional
annuitias annuities provitions Hahility claims
At 1 June 2020
Charge for the year - e - 26 B2
Additions - - g - 5
Transfer BE 86) . . .
Paid in the year [38) . [21 (28] |68}
Unused amount released - (11} - {11}
Unwinding of discount 13 9 - - 12
Actuarial l6sses 3l 13 = 44
A3l May 2021 043 558 S8 45 1,604
Charge for the year - 36 21 57
Additions - - 3 - 3
Transfer S0 {50} - - -
Faid in the year [41) - (8) (19 (68}
Unused amount released = % [4) [13) {17}
Unwinding of discount 18 12 - - 30
Actuarial gains (67 {15) - - {82}
At 31 May 2022 a03 541 45 34 1537
Income statement chargef{credit)
022 (49) 33 (4) 8 (12}
2021 44 58 [11) 286 117
Group LLP
‘million 2022 2021 223 2021
Included in current llabilities &8 i1 B3 &b
Inchaded in non-current liabilities 1,966 1,540 1,464 1,538
1,534 1,606 1527 1,604
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17. Provisions (continued)

Group and LLP
Former and current members' annulties

Annuities payable to former and current members are unfunded. In the case of retirement annuities, payment is generally
conditional upan the future generation of profits in any year and such payments are generally capped at 8% of the
aperating profit before annuity charges, as defined in the relevant agreement,

The annuities prosvision represents the estimated present value of the Group's future obligation.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in caleulsting the provision, after the application of mortality rates, are as
fallows:

Parcantage 2022 2021
Discount rate * 3.6 2.0
Inflation rate 35 i3

'The discount rode b5 hased an (e pisid on the Dver 15 ¥ear A4-Roted Corparae Bond Index

The assumed discount rate, inflation rate and future profitability of the Group and LLP have a significant effect on the
annuities provision, At 31 May 2022, the total provision of £1,444 miflion (2021; £1.501 million]} decreased by £57 million
primarily as a result of the combined effects of a change in the discount rate and an increase in assumed future
profitability. The table below shows the sensitvity of the annuities prowvision at 31 May 2022 to changes in thesa
assumptions,

Change in assumptions

Increase by 0.25% (52)
Discount rate

Decrease by 0.25% 55

Incraase by 0.25% 16
Inflation rate

Decrease by 0.25% (16}
Long-term assumption for annual in profit Increase by 0.25% 35

Increase by 0.50% 70
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17. Provisions (continued)

The post retirement mortality of the members is assumed to be in line with Self-Administered Pension Scheme (53] light
birth year tables with scaling factors for each member class as determined by the Actuary's Longewity Model with Core
Continuous Maortality Investigation ["CMI') 2021 improvements with a long-term rate of 1.25%. The assumed life
expectancies on retirement at age 60 are;

2023 2021

Retiring today:

Males a7 a7

Females 29 L
Retiring in 20 years:

Males 249 249

Females 31 30
Property provisions

Provisions are recognised for obligations to restore premises to thelr original condition upon vacating them, whera such
an obligation exists under the lease. The provisions are based on estimated future cash flows discounted to present value,
with the amortisation of that discount presented in the income statement as a finance cost,

PFroperty provisions for the Group of £52 million [2021: £58 million) are expected to be utilised by 2041 (2021: 2036).

Property provisions for the LLP of £49 million (2021: E58 million) are expected to be utilised by 2037 (2021 2036).

Professional liability claims

The Group and i1 members are invalved in a number of disputes in the ordinary courde of butiness which may give rise (o
claims or regulatory proceedings. A provision representing the cost of defending and concluding claims or regulatony
proceedings is made for all matters where costs are likely to be incurred and can be measured reliabdy. The Group carries
professional indemnity insurance and no separate disclosure is made of the detail of claims covered by insurance as to do
s could seriousty prejudice the position of the Group.
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18. Members® interests

Group
Members' Amounts due
Members' ather  tof{from)

E'miillian capital FESEIVES members)

Balance at 1 June 2020 135 {1.062) [33) {360}
Profit for the year - 708 - Fi
Other comprehensive income for the year - 4 - 4

135 (300 23} {248}

Operating profit allocated to members - [424) 424 -

Capital profit distributable to members (Mate 21) = - 136 136

Capital contributions by members 5 . . 5

Repayment of capital 124) - - |24}

Fayments to members - - [Sed) 1560}

Transfer out - Retired partners’ balances (net)’ - - ] [

Deemed distribution to parent - (1) . (1}

Balance at 1 June 2021 11& (775} (27} 686}
Profit for the year - 765 . 768
Other comprehensive income for the year - 68 - BB

i1e 62 [27) 151

Operating profit allocated to members - [592) 592 -

Capital contributions by members 164 . . 164

Repayment of capital {14) . . {14}

Payments to members = : (630} {630)

Transfer out - Retired partners’ balances Inntf - - [17) (17}

Deemed distribution to parent - (1) - {1}

Balance at 31 May 2022 266 {531) (B2) (347)

J-ﬂ'mh'rn:ﬁahnfmmmﬁwﬂmﬂ'ﬂmﬁewﬂﬁm'mhnmﬂkrm‘mﬂ Deher crecidors”,
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18. Members' interests (continued)

LLP
Members' Amounts due
ather  tof{from)

E'miillian FESEIVES members)

Bafance at 1 June 2020 135 11.218] [33) [1,116)
Profit for the year - 665 o655
Other comprehensive income for the year - 59 58

135 [404) (33} {392}

Operating profit allocated to members - [424) 424 -

Capital profit distributable to members (Mate 21) = - 136 136

Capital contributions by members 5 . 5

Repayment of capital 124) |24}

Fayments to members - [Sed) 1560}

Transfer out - Retired partners’ balances (net)’ - - ] [

Deemed distribution to parent - (1 . {1}

Balance at 1 June 2021 116 [919j (27} (B3m}
Profit for the year - 817 - 817
Other comprehensive income for the year - (3 - {3}

116 (105) (27) {16}

Operating profit allocated to members - [592) 502 =

Capital contributions by members 164 . . 164

Repayment of capital (14} . {14}

Fayments to members = £ (630) (630)

Transfer out - Retired partners’ balances Inntf - - [17) (17}

Deemed distribution te parent - (1) . {1}

Balance at 31 May 2022 266 (698) (B2} {514}

J-ﬂ'mh'rn:ﬁahnfmmmﬁwﬂmﬂ'ﬂmﬁewﬂﬁm'mhnmﬂkrm‘mﬂ Deher crecidors”,
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18. Members' interests (continued)

The assets and Habilites related o member’ interests are classified as:

Amounts due  Amounts due fo

E ' million Blembers’ capital  from members
2021
Mon-Current 112 - -
Current 4 (440} i3
116 (40) 13
2022
Mon-Current 256 - =
Current 10 [B2) =
266 [82) g

Members” capital i classified as a financial liability, because it is repayable when a member leaves the Group, The
negative members’ interests arise as a result of the members’ distributable profit being determined by the Group's
management accounts, which are based on different accounting polickes to these financial staterments. The rmost
significant difference bebaaen these financial staterments and the Group's management accounts relates to the provision
of farmer and current member annuities of £903 million (2021; £943 miflion) and E541 million (3021: E558 million)
respectviely. The payrment of this annuity liability, which totals £1,444 million (2021: £1,501 millian), is conditional an the
future genaration of profits and is payable over & number of years with E534 million (2021; £492 million) expected to be
payable between 1 to 10 years, E258 million {2021: £245 million) payable between 10 and 15 years and £652 milllon
{2021: ET64 million) payable after 15 years.

Members” other reserves rank after unsecured creditors and loans, and other debis due to members ranking pari passu
with unsecured creditors in the event of a winding up,

Members’ profit share

The Group's distributable profits are allecated according to members’ units. The unit alocation s completed after the
year-and and accordingly, there was no automatic allocation of profits among the members at 31 May 2022, As a result,
thie balance of profit available for division among the members as at 31 May 2022 [s included in memibers' other reserves.

19. Retirement benefit schemes

The cost of employee benefits included in the income statement for the year was:

LLP

‘millian
Contributions to defined contribution scheme [Note 4}
Past and present service cost for defined benefit pension schemes and

et interest cost 30 30 - 3
Pension scheme ather finance costs - 1 = 1
218 158 1732 &7
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Defined contribution schemes

The Group’s primary defined contribution scheme, the Delaitte Pendian Plan ("DPP'), is a defined eontribution master trust
arrangement operated by Standard Life where the assets are held separately from those of the Group. The DPP i open for
employees in the UK, Jersey and Guernsey [except those employees who retained their perional pension poficy
arrangements in the Channel Islands). For employees in the UK, a salary sacrifice arrangement also exists, known as the
SMART Pensions, under which the employer contributions are increased by 5% of the employes contribution to provide a
share of the Group's saving of its Mational Insurance contribation, This is paid into the DPP in addition to the employer
contributions. Employess can opt out of the SMART pensions’ arrangement af the DPP,

A5 at 31 May 2022, the DPP scheme had 21,078 members (2021; 19,345), of which 14,137 members [2021; 13,477}
related to employees of the LLP. At 31 May 2022 and 2021, the LLP had no contributions payable to the DPF,

Defined benefit schemes

In the UK, the Group provided retirement benefits on a defined benefit basis through the Deloitte UK Pension Scheme
{'DUKPS") up until 31 March 2021. On 1 April 2021, the assets and labilities of the 5cheme were transferred to the DUKPS
Section of the Deloitte Pensions Master Plan (the "UK Scheme'). There were no changes to the benefits provided to the
membars,

The UK Scheme was closed to future accrual for remaining active members with effect from 31 January 2013, Under the
UK Scheme, members are entitled to retirement benefits of up to two-thirds of their final salary on attainment of
retirerment ages between 60 and 65, depanding upon their pensionable serdce. Mo other post-retirement benefits are
provided. The UK Scheme is a funded scherne, with the UK Scheme assets held separately under trust to meet the
lang-term pension liabilities for past members. The Trustes of the UK Scheme is required by law bo act in the interest of all
of the beneficiaries of the UK Scheme and is responsibée for the investment podicy with regard to the UK Scheme assets
and for determining the contribution by Deloitte LLP to the UK Scheme.

In Switzerland, current pension arrangements ane made through a fund operated by Basler Leben AG (the “Swiss Schame’,
and when taken together with the UK Scheme, the Schemes'). Under the Swiss Scheme, the final benefit i
contribution-based with certain minimum guarantees. Due to these minimum guarantees, the Group's Swiks Scheme i
treated as a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of these financial statements, although the Swiss Scheme has many
of the characteristics of a defined contribution plan. In circumstances where an under-funding arises, this may be
remedied by various measures such as Increasing employee and Group contributions, lowering Interest rates on
retirerment savings, or reducing prospective benefits.
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
Scheme risks

The Schemes expose the Group to risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk and longevity risk,

Investment risk

The present value of the Schemes' ability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality
corporate bond vields; if the return on the Schemes” assets is below this rate, it will create a deficit and potentially require
further contributions from the Groug.

Strategic management of the assets of the Schemes, including setting the asset allocation guidelines is the responsibility of
the Trustee. The Trustee takes into consideration the Schemes' liability, the covenant of the Group and funding levels,
when setting the investment strategy,

The Trustees of the Schemes continue to review the investment strategy on a regular basis,

Interest rate risk

The present value of the Schemes' liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality
corporate bond yields., A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the Schemes’ liability. This will, however, be
partially offset by an increase in the return on the Schemes' debt investments,

Longevity risk

The present value of the Schames’ Hability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of the Schemes’
participants bath during snd after their employment. An incfease in the life expectancy of the Schemes’ participants will
increase the Schemes” liability,

Assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2022 2021

Percantage UK Swilss UK Swig
Discount rate 36 1.7 0 0.2
Inflation [RPI) 3.5 . i3 .
inflation [CPI) 2.8 - 2.6 .
Interest Credit on Retirement Savings - 1.0 - 0.5
Social Security Increasa - 1.0 - )
Expected increase in pension payments

RIM subject to a maximum of 50% pa a3 . iz

RP subject to a maximum of 4.0% pa 3.) . in

Rl subject to a maximum of 2.5% pa 2.3 - 2.2 -
Expected rate increases in salaries - 14 - 14

For the UK Scheme, the mortality of the Scheme members i astumed 1o be in line with SAPS (S3) light birth year tabled
with scaling factors for each member class as determined by the Actuary’s Longevity Model with ChMI 2021 improvements
with a long-term rate of 1.25%. For the Swiss Scheme, the mortality of the Scheme members is assumed to be in line with
the B¥G 2020 generational tables.
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The assumed life expectancy on reticemaent at age 65 for the UK Scheme are as follows;

Retiring today:
Males 3 212
Females 25 i
Retiring fn 20 yeors;
Males 24 24
Females 26 26

Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption

The discount rate, inflation rate, salary increases and mortality assumptions, where applicable, alf have a significant effect
an the valuation of the Schemes.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the UK Scheme bo reasonably possible changes in these assumptions
occurring at the balance sheet date, while holding all other assumptions constant:

« |if the discount rate 5 0.25% highear {lower], the defined benefit obligation would decrease by E28 million [increase by
£27 milltion}.

# [If the inflation rate increases [decreases] by 0.25%, the defined besefit obligation would increase by £21 million
idecrease by £18 million),

» |f the life expectancy increases [decreases) by 1 year, the defined benefit obligation would increase by £31 million
{decrease by £31 million).

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the value of the Swiss Scheme to reasonably possible changes in

thiese assumptions occuwrring at the end of the reparting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

& I the discount rate is 0.25% higher (lower), the defined benefit abligation would decrease by £9 million [increass by
£10 milfion},

» If the inflation rabefsalary rate increases [decreases) by 0.25%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by £1
million {decrease by £1 million].
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Amounts recognised in the Income Statement
The amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of the defined benefit schemes are as follows:

Group LLP
€ million 20232 2021 Fiirs 201
Operating expenses - Current and past service cost E ] 30 - 3
Flnanoe costs - Minimum funding reguirameant 3 2 3 2
Finance costs - Met interest income {3} {1} {3} {1}
E L 11 - 4

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Re-measurements recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are:

Group

£'million

Return on Scheme assets (excluding amounts included

in the net interest cost) 134 L] 139 39 [} 37
Actuarial losses/[gains) arising from changes in

demuographic assumptions B - E 2] {12} {14}
Actuarial (galns)flosses arising from changes in financial

assumptions {1E7) (65) {252} 12 . 12
Actuarial losses/[gains) arising from changes in

eRpETience assumplions 26 (2} 24 (16] 7 [E]]
Re-measurements of defined benofit pension sehermes [19) {62} [B1) 33 (7 6
Effect of minirmum funding requirement |excluding

amounts included in the net interest cost) 21 - 21 i33) - (33)

2 (62} (60} (7) {71

Funded status and Scheme assets

The amount recognised in the balance sheet arising from the obligations in respect of the defined benefit schemes s as
Tl s

Group

E'million

Fair value of Scherme assets 1,025 156 1,381 1,099 09 1,408
Present value of Stheme obligations {P_Eﬁ_l I:!_'.I'E}_ {1,244) (1,029) (323} [1.433)
Funded status 160 {23) i37 &0 (B4) {24)
Additional minimum funding requirement {160) - [ Led) 113a) - (13a]
MNet liakility recognised in the balance sheet - (23] {23) (76) (B4) (160]
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

L

£million 20232 2021
Fair value of Scheme assets® 1,025 1,169
Present valug of Scheme obligations (865} (1,039
Funded status 160 130
Additional minimurn funding requirement ? 1160} {135}
Met liakility recognised in the balance sheet - (&)

JJ.n the HIP1 LLP bolonce sheet, pursusant fo RS, e inveshmend held by the LI Scheme b o Scodilsh Limited Poninership, Delodite Scobiowd Limited
Pavinership ['SUF] af £70 métan qealfied oi o Scheme odiet ond & @ thergfore ingluded & I foir value of Scheme aiiefs. See Peasion Funding
Pevinerghip helow,

"fee below for further detefs o the Group's fufure funding commitment, The Growp bas determined that the future funding commitment woukd result i
o profecied Surpdus in fhe UK Scheme. s e Group does ot hove ow oncondibions! right to o refund,. an odjustment hos been made for potentio'
soditinnal Nobdites of E160 milion (F021: £136 milion) represesting the excess of the projected presest voive of Hhe committed contribulion over bhe

difieit.
Movement in Scheme assets

The movemaents in the Schemes' assots for Group and LLP were as follows:

Group 1022 2021

i'milllen UK Swiss Tokal UK Siwiss Total
Fair value of Scheme assets at 1 June 1,059 309 1,408 1,116 05 1,421
Imterest income 13 - 23 18 1 19
Re-measurement [loss)fgains: Return on Scheme assets

[ecludéng amounts included in net interest cost] {134) 151 (133} (39) 2 (37]
Groug contributions 7B a1 109 52 28 a0
Contributions from employees = 18 1B - 16 16
Bencfits paid [41) (15} (SE) (e8] (21 (59
Exchange movement - 18 1B = [22) 22}
Faif value of Schame assets at 31 May 1,025 356 1.3E1 1,099 00 1,408
LLP

E"'million 2022 2021
Fairvalue of Scheme assets at 1 June 1,169 1,130
Imterest income 23 18
Re-measurement [loss]fgains: Return on Scheme assets (excluding amownts included in

net interast cost) {134) 19
LLP contributions B 50
Benefits paid {41} (43}
Fair value of Scheme assets at 31 May 1,025 1,165
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
Allecation and market value of Scheme assets

The allocation and market value of Scheme assets at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group 2022 2021
£ 'million LK Swiss Total UK Swiss Total
Corporate bonds Chuoted 491 491 468 468
Absolute Return Band Fund Cuated g4 Ea L S
Leverage liability hedging portfolio Quiated 260 260 330 330
LIK property Cuoted B0 B0 a5 a5
Money mafket Quoted 25 15 10 10
Debt Unquoted iz 32 46 46
Infrastructure Unguoted B0 &0 57 57
Imsured annuities 3 356 356 3 E10 ] i1z
Dther net assets 3 5 a0 a0
1,025 i56 1,381 1,084 108 1,408
LLP
£'million 2002 2021
Corporate bonds Quated 441 48
Absalute Return Bond Fund Csated B9 a0
Leverage liability hedging portfolio Ouated 260 330
UK property Quated B0 ah
Maoney market Quated 3E 10
Debt Unguoted 32 46
Infrastructure Ungquoted &0 57
Pension Funding Partnership Unguoted = 0
Imsured annuities Unguoted 3 3
Other net assets Unquoted g a0
1,025 1,169
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Pension Funding Partnership

In March 2010 the LLP entered into an asset backed funding agreement with the UK Scheme through the establishment of
a Scottish Limited Partnership, Deloitte Scotland Limited Partnership ['SLP'). Under this agreemaent, the beneficial interest

in certain trade receivables wore transferred to the SLP for a 15 year period from the date of implementation.

The UK Scheme had a Hmited interest In the SLP, the value of which was taken into account in ts assessment of the
scheme’s funding position as part of the trieanial actuarial valuation process referred to above, and was entitled to a
combined annual distribution from the profits of the SLP of between E3 million and £2 million for 15 years from the date
of implementation. Thede payments were in addition to the Group's funding arrangement,

On 30 June 2021, the value of the UK Scheme’s initial investment of £70 millbon was returned to the Trustes as part of tha
overall package to fund the Scheme to the low risk target, The Pension Funding Partnership was subsequently collapsed in

March 2022,
Scheme obligations
The changes in defined benefit obligations were as follows:
roup 2022 2021
£ 'million UK  Swhs  Total UK Swiss Otherl Tota
Present value of defined benefit obligations at 1 June 1,039 393 1432 1073 403 3 1474
Current service cost - 30 o - 34 34
Interest cost 20 1 a1 17 1 18
Contributions from employees - 18 18 - 16 16
Remeasurermnent losses/(gains):
Changes in demographic ] - ] 2 (12 {14}
Changes in financial assumptions (187} (85} [252) 12 - 12
Experience adjustments on defined benefit 26 2] 24 {18} 7 9]
Past service cost [including curtaitmants) - - - 3 {7 {4}
Benefits paid f41]) {13} (58} (48}  {21) {69}
Deconsolidation of subsidiary - - - - - 3} 3}
Exchange movement - 19 19 - (28] {28}
Present value of defined benefit obligation at 31 May 285 379 1244 1,039 393 1,432

'other in 2021 (sdn respectoff the DTAE Scheme which was no jonger consolidafed info fbese flnanciof stefements from 1 lune 2020
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19. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

LLP
£ milllian 2022 2021
fresent value of defined benefit obligations at 1 June 1,030 1,073
Interest cost 0 17
Remeasurement (gains)flosses:
Changes in demographic B i2]
Changes in financial assumptions {187} 12
Experience adjustments on defined benefit 26 18]}
Fast service cost [Including curtailments) - E|
Benefits paid (41} (48}
Present value of defined benefit obligation at 31 May BES 1,039

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

The average duration of the UK Scheme at the end of the reporting period is 15 years (2021; 16 years), This number can be
subdivided into the duration related to:

=  deferred members: 17 years [2021: 18 years); and
« former members: 11 years {2021: 12 years).
The average duration of the Swiss Scheme at the end of the reporting period is 9.9 years (2021: 12.6 years),

Funding arrangement - the Scheme

During the year ended 31 May 2022, the Group pald in full the amounts agreed with the Trustee to fully fund the UK
Scheme on a low risk basis. Consequently, the Group 5 no longer reguired to make futwre contributions into the UK
Scheme subject to the conclusions of the next actuariad valuation which will be based on the 31 March 2023 funded
position.

Expenses and administrative costs incurred in connection with the UK Scheme and any remuneration of the Directors of
the Trustee are payable by the Group. Levies paid to the Pension Protection Fund and other bodies to the extent not met
by the UK Scheme's assets are payable by the Group.

Expected contributions to the Schemes for the next annual reporting period

Group and LLP

Given the fully funded position of the UK Scheme, the Group and LLP does not expect to make any contribastions to the LE
Scheme in the next financial year. A contribution of £32 mifllion [CHF 38 million) will be made by the Group in respect of
the Swiss Scheme.
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20. Financial instruments

Capital and financial risk management

The Group manages its capital to safeguard its ability to continue &% a going concern while maintaining an optimal capital
structure to cover the cash requirermnents of the business. The Group's funding strategy is periodically reviewoed to ensure
the optimal mix of the sources of capital,

The Group's capital comprises of and |s financed by, principally members’ capital, undistributed profits, tax reserves and
borrowings. See Notes 16 and 18. The Group holds financial instruments in order to finance its operations and manage
foreign currency risks arising from its operations and sources of finance,

The Group's capital structure and treasury policies are regularly reviewed by the Group's Executive to ensure they remain
relevant to the business and its plans for growth. The Groug aims to minimise the level of short-term borrowing and this is
achieved through the active management and targeting of custormer receivables, amounts due from OTTL netwaork firms
and amounts to be billed to customers. A number of entities within the Group are regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority and, as such, are subject o certain regulatory capital requirements, These requirements were met throughout
the financial year.
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments

The principal financial instruments held by the Group are summarised in the tables below by meassurement category. Such
imstruments give ride to liquidity, counterparty credit, interest rate and foreign currency risks. Information about these
risks and how they are managed is set out on the following pages,

The carrying amounts of financial instruments are as follows:

Group
Carrying value
Agsats at Labifities at
amartised FVTOCI -  amortsed
£ 'millicn sk FVTPL designated cost Falr value
Year ended 31 May 2021
Asgels
Dervative financial instruments - 11 - - 11
Trade and other recenvables ! 1,395 . . . 1,395
Amounts due from members 40 - - - 40
Cash and bank balances 428 - - - 428
Other non-current assets 38 - 11 - a5
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2 = - - 359 359
Amounts due to members . . - 13 13
Borrowings - - - 101 110
Lease llahilities - - - G683 &83
Members' capltal - - - 116 116
Year ended 31 May 2022
Assets
Derivative financial instruments - 21 . . 21
Trade and other recedvables 1577 - - - 1,577
Armounts due from members 32 - - - a2
Cash and bank balances BOE - - - G0R
Other non-current assets 38 43 81
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2 - . . 364
Borrowings - - - 112 112
Lease liabilities - - - ] L2 ]
Members' capital - - - 266 266

"Trode aod aber receivahled in the balanse thee] inclute prepapieats, which are sal ffrencial aiierd and henee extloded frovm phe faiies oboer,
"Il'-rmtm'm'mhrrpuwhfr:.‘.vﬂrrhwvnyrﬂﬂufﬂ#rpmp:ﬂh’ﬂ.iﬂ;minf!ﬁmﬁrm?dmhrtmmwmmﬁ which are not financksy!
finbildies and hence evcheded from the fobics above.
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

LLP
Carrylng value
Adiatd at Lisbifities st
amortised FWTOC - amortisad

£'million cost FVTPL designated cost  Fairvalue
Year ended 31 May 2021
Assets
Derivative financial instruments - 11 - - 11
Trade and other receivables 1 1,240 - - - 1,240
Amoiunts due fram members a0 . - . a0
Cash and bank balances 318 - - - iis
COther non-current assets 24 - 8 - 32
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2 - . . 365 365
Armounts due to members - . . 13 13
Borrowings : . - 312 321
Lease liahilities - - - 619 619

_Members’ capital = = 3 116 116
Year ended 31 May 2022
Assets
Derivative financial instruments - 21 - = 21
Trade and other receivables ! 1287 - - - 1,287
Armounts due from members 82 - - - a2
Cash and bank balances 432 - - - 432
Other nof-current assets 22 - &0 - 62
Liabilities
Trade and other payables? - . . 270 270
Borrowings - - - 110 110
Lease liabilitias - - - &33 833
Members' capltal - - - 266 266

Irﬂwwmhwmmmwk wehich ore sl Feaacal aisers and hanee erciosted from phe fofied abowe.
;T:n#undnlwmﬂuhﬂwhmmrmdudrpmm sl security and cdher dowed ovd cevtoin accruals, which are not finoncks!
fobddies ond hence axcleched fram the tabies above.
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Growp's cross-currency swaps, foreign exchange swap contracts and foreign currency forwards are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period using the discounted cash flow valuation technigue, The fair value of these
instruments is estimated using future cash flows based on contractual interest rates (if applicable] and the foreign
exchange rates discounted by the market interest rate and adjusted for counterparty credit risk,

The investments in equity instruments are designated at FWTOCO! because recognising short-term fluctuations in these
investmients in ling with a FVTPL approach would not be consistent with the Group's strategy of halding these investmients
for long-term purposes. The fair value of such imestments as at 31 May 2022 for the Group and LUP i E43 million (2021:
£11 million) and E40 million (2021; £8 milion] respectively. The fair walues of such equity instruments have been
determined malnly using the dividend discount model with the key assumption being the discount rate applied to the
anticipated future returns. Doe to restrictions that are characteristics of the equity instruments that would be transferred
to market participants, the Group has determined that the fair value is equal to the cost after adjustments to reflect the
effect of the restriction. In respect of the equity investment made in Deloitte NSE Investments Limited ['DNSEN} disclosed
in Mote 22, a discounted cash flow valuation methodology was used to derive the fair value,

There was no transfer of cumulative gain or loss within equity during the years ended 31 May 2022 and 2021 ralated to
queh investrnents. Thene was one eguity investment messured ot FVTOC that has been de-recognised during the period,
which was sold for nil consideration,

Borrowings are measured at amortised cost in the balance sheet, The fair value of borrowings was determined wsing the
discounted cash flow valuation technique. The fair value of these instruments is estimated using future cash flows based
on contractual interest rates and the foreign exchange rates discounted by the market interest rate and adjusted for
enunterparty credit risk,

The fair value of the cross-currency swaps, foreign exchange swap contracts, foreign currency forwards and borrowings
are categorised within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as it is based on inpats other than quoted prices and maximises
the wse of observable data. The fair value measurement of eqguity investments i Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy as
setout in IFRS 13, due to the unobsarvable inputs. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 In the years ended 31
May 2022 and 2021,

Financial risk management objectives

The Deloitte NSE Executive Group determines the treasury policies of the Group. These policies relate to specific risks that
the Delodtte NSE Executive Group wishes to manage incleding liquidity, counterparty credit risk, interest rate and foreign
CurFERACY exposures. Mo speculative trading is permitted and hedging is undertaken for specific exposures to reduce risk.

"4 | Consodidated Financial Statements 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

20. Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk

Uitimate responaibility for liquidity risk management lies with the Deloitte NSE CED, in combination with the Deloitte NSE
Executive Group, which has developed an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for management of the
Group's funding and liquidity management requirements, The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adeqguate
banking facilities, reserve borrowing facilities and by continually monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. Liguidity risk
arises from the Group's ongoing financial obligations, induding settlement of financial llabilities such as trade and other
payables, lease Eabilities, borrowings and members’ capital,

The Group's financing requirements vary during the year, partly as a result of payments to and on behalf of members and
partly as a result of other major payments such as leasehold improvements. See Note 16 for details of the Group's
borrowings, including avatlable facilities.

Contractual maturity

The following tabdes detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial abilities with regard to the
repaymant periods, The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscountod cash flows of the financial liabilitios based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest rate flows are floating, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the and
of the reparting period. For the cross-currency swaps the table has been drawn up based on the gross undiscounted
outllows on the derfvatives as they require gross settlement.

Members” capital is incleded in the carliest time band in which the Group can be required to pay the amount,
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that a
substantial number of members will not resign triggering repayment of the amounts due within a year,

40 | Consolidated Financial Statements 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

20. Financial instruments (continued)

Group
Gross
Contractual Within ang bore than 5
cash fows yaar -5 years
Year ended 31 May 2021
Non-derivative finencigl lebilities
Accruals 220 220 - -
Trade payables 22 22 - -
Armounts due to ather member firms of the DTTL network 63 63
Other payables 54 54 - .
Lease liabilitias 756 a9 248 415
Bank lpans 1 1 - -
Private Placement Loan Motes 104 a 105 -
Members' capital 116 4 112 -
Armounts due to members 13 13 . .
Capital funding commitments 2 1 . 1
1,356 471 465 420
Derivative financial ebilities
Cross-CUPrancy Swmnps a7 3 Bd -
Year ended 31 May 2022
Accruals 159 159 - =
Trade payables as a5 = =
Amounts due to other member firms of the DTTL network ar a7 - -
Other payables 23 B3 - -
Lease liabilities 782 B0 251 451
Bank loans 2 2 . -
Frivate Placement Loan Notes 122 5 117 =
Members' capital 266 10 256 -
- N 1,536 451 B4 451
Derivative financiol lobilities
Cross-currency Swikps 823 3 EQ -
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

LLP
Gross
Contractual Within ang bore than 5
cash fows yaar -5 years

Year ended 31 May 2021
Non-derivative finencigl lebilities
Accruals 167 167 - -
Trade payables 10 10 - -
Armounts due to ather member firms of the DTTL network s 38 . -
Amounts due to Grouwp undertakings 114 118 - .
Cther payables 32 3z - -
Lease llabilities 645 &0 230 355
Factoring arrangements 212 212 - -
Private Flacement Loan Motes 109 4 105 .
Members' capital 116 4 112 -
Amounts due to members 13 13 - -
Capital funding commitments 1 - - 1

1511 678 437 L
Derivative finansiol Nobilities
Cross-CUFTERncY Swaps a7 3 Bd -
Year ended 31 May 2022
Accruals 113 113 - -
Trade payables 3 23 - -
Amounts due to other member firms of the OTTL network 55 58 - -
Armounts dee to Group undertakings 4 4 - -
Other payables 71 71 - -
Lease liabilities 727 70 225 432
Private Placement Loan Motes 122 5 117 -
Members' capltal 266 10 256 -

1,385 355 598 432
Derivative financial fabilities
Cross-currency swaps a3 3 EOQ -
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

Counterparty credit risk

Cash deposits and other financial instruments with banks and financial institutions give rise to counterparty credit sk, As
a means of mitigating the rak of financial loss from defaults, the Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterpartios and limiting the aggregate amount and duration of exposure to any one counterparty, The
Group's other significant credit risk relates to customer receivables, Refer to Mote 14,

Customer receivables are spread across diverse industries and the Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure
to any single industry, counterparty or any group of counterpartics. having similar characteristics. The Group defines
counterpartios a5 hiwing similar characteristics if they are related entities. Credit risk for new and existing customars are
assessed as part of the Group's customer acceptance processes, In addition, credit risk is managed by maintaining close
contact with each customer and by routine billing and cach collection as wark ls completed.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk for the Group arises from varable interest rate borrowings and any material cash balances. Interest rates
fluctuate over time and the Growp accepts this risk and does not consider it to be material, & reasonable change in the
intarest rate would have an immaterial impact on pre-tax profits and equity of the Group.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's income and expenditure are primarily in Pounds Steding. However, some income and costs are denominated
in foreign currencies, as are the majority of transactions with DTTL member firms. The principal foreign currency
exposures for the Group are to the US dollar, Eure and Swiss franc, The Group secks to minimise its cxposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates by hedging against foreign currency exposures using cross-currency swaps and foreign
currency forwards as hedging instruments to economically manage foreign exchange risk

AL 31 May 2022, the Group has 5240 million of US dollar and €130 million of euro foreign exchange swap contracts to
econamically manage exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from receivables and payables. The foreign exchange
swaps arg subject to the same risk management palicies as all other derivative contracts, In the current year, net foreign
exchange losses of £18 million {2021 net gain of £17 millien) were recognised in the income statement in respect of the
foreign currency exchange swap contracts and fareign currency forwards,

The Group's Series B Motes are denominated in US dollars, The Group has managed the associated foreign currency risk
through a cross-currency swap, the terms of which are identical to the lsan notes received, The Group hedges 100% of the
changes in Pound Sterling functional currency equivalent cash flows relating to changes in foreign currency forward rates
related to the Motes and to the interest payments. The Group uses the hypothetical derivative method to assess
affactiveness. Ineffectiveness may arise due to:

e changes in the enedit fisk of the eross-currency Swaps which are not matched by the hypothetical dervative; and
#  changes inthe embedded financing element incloded in the £ross-currenty SwWaps.
The ingffectiveness during 2022 and 2021 was less than £1 million in relation to the £ross EUFTERcY SWwaps,
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

The following table s a surnmary of the Group and LLPs net forelgn currency-denaminated monetary assatsf{labifities):

Group Group LLE LLP

£'million 2022 2021 20232 2021
Euro 98 122 52 a0
s dollar 00 203 40 66

Swiss franc 3 1 a5 (34)
Other 10 (1) 0 21
411 335 157 143

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following tables detail the Group and LLP's sensitivity to a 10% decrease in the stering amount against the relevant
forelgn currencies. 10% [s the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in the next twelve months in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis incledes only outstanding foreign currency-denominated monetary items
{incheding derivative instruments) and adjusts the translation at the year-end for o 10% change in exchange rates, A
positive numbser below indicates an increase in profit or equity (as relevant], where the functional currency weakens 10%
against the relevant currency.

Group Group LLIP LLP
i'milllon 2022 2021 2022 2021
Impact on profit
Euro currency impact 10 13 5 9
L5 dollar currency impact 30 20 4 &
Swiss franc currency impact - 1 3 i3]
Crther foreign currency impact 1 1 3 2

41 EL 15 14

Impact on egquity
LIS dollar currancy impact - - - -

As moted above, the Group and LLP utilise cross-currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts to manage its
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates. At 31 May 2023, the Group and LLF had cross-currency swaps in place relating
to the Series B Motes, whereby the Group and LLP receive a ficed interest rate of 4,40% on a notional amount of USS126
millian and pays 4.23% on a notional sterling balance of £79 millian (2021: £79 million]. The table below summarises the
individual cross currency swap rates, notional principal value and fair value relating to these instruments as well as
information related to the hedged items. The cross-currency swap contract assets are included in derivative financial
imstrurmients on the balance sheet,
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

Average Change in falr value
Principal Moticnal comntract for caloulating
Value exchange fiwed interest Notional principal hedge
rata rate value Faiir value ingflectiveness
Maturity date 2022 2021 2022 2021 Fi L 221 ol P 2021
S'million  £/US5 ! ] Em £m
Us596 1/1.6 10 Ochober 2023 4.2 4.2 B0 &0 16 ] 8 (13)
US530 1/1.6 10 October 2023 42 a2 148 19 5 3 2 i3]
Us518 1/1.6 10 October 2020 - 1 - 5 . 3 n (3)

Change in falr value used  Balance accumulated in
for calculating hedge equity for continuing
ineHectivensss hedges
'millian 2022 2021 2022 2021
Hotes 10 [15) - 1]

The interest and primcipal payments will continue through to the year ending 31 May 2024, over which time the
armounts deferred in sguity will be reclassified to profit and loss.

The movemant in the amount aceumulated in equity for the Graup in relation o the cash flow hedge is as shown below:

Change n fair value used
for caloulating hedga

ineffectivengss

202 021
Balance at the beginning of the year (1) 2}
{Gain)/loss arising on changes in fair value of cross-currency swap {11} 14
Amounts reclassified to profit and loss 12 {13)
Ealance at the end of the year - i1}
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21. Sale of restructuring practice in prior year

In February 2021 Deladtte LLP entered Into & conditional agreement to sell its Restrecturing business. The conditions for
sale were met during the financial year and the sale completed on 28 May 2021, resulting in the transfer of 16 egquity
partners and 239 staff employed by the practice at the date of completion together with certain customer contracts and
related assets,

The consideration due to the Group as a result of the sale was £220 million. Afver adjusting for payrents made on behalf
of Dedoitte LUP by the purchaser of E13 million, cash proceeds received fram the sale were £207 million. After deduction
of the net sdsets dispaded totalling £28 million {(primarily acerued and deferred income) and transaction costd of £8 million
from the sales consideration of E220 million, the net profit on the sale of the practice was £184 million,

In accordance with the Deloitte LLP Partnership Agreement, the profit on the sale of the Restructuring practice
represented a capital profit, which must be distributed to members. The distribution of capital profits to members
amounting to EL36 million is determined by Deloitte LLP's management accounts which have accounting policles different
to these financial statements.

22. Related party transactions

Parent undertaking and controlling party

The ultimate holding and controlling party of the LLP is Delaitte NSE LLP a limited lability partnership incorpocated in the
UK under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000, The parent undertaking of the largest group which includes the LLP
and for which group accounts are prepared is Defoitte NSE LLP. The parent undertaking of the smallest such group is
Deloitte LLP. The financial statements of Deloitte WSE LLF are publicly available and can be obtained from the Registrar of
Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff, CF14 302

Trading transactions

Transactions with subsidiaries of the Group, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consofidation. These
transactions include management charges from the LLP and charges for the costs of services. Detalls of transactions
between the Group, the LLPF and other related parties are disclosed below. The table also includes gutstanding balances as
at the end of each repocting year,

Provision of services
to and Income from  Purchase of services Amounts due from  Amounts due to

roup related partles from related parties  related parties related parties
‘million 20232 221 2022 2021 20x2 2021 202 2021
Deloitte NSE LLP = E : - 1 1 g i
Fellow subsidiaries 149 ES (157] {34] 73 12 [18) {15}
Associates of Group andfor parent 143 154 [287) {216] 57 B (] 15}
292 239 (244) {310) 131 77 [25) {25}
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Provivion of searvices to
and income from  Purchase of services Amounts due from  Amounts due 1o

related parties from related parties  related parties related parties

2022 2021 2022 2021 2O 2021 2022 2021
Subsidiaries 280 244 [26) 34} 218 72 [35] 1330}
Deloitte NSE LLP . - £ : 1 1 . .
Fellow subsidiaries 91 63 [121) (70) 20 3 [15) {10}
Associates of LLP and/for parent 113 102 (230) {175} 4f a5 (5) {8}
484 409 (377) (283} 286 317 (55) (348}

In the year ended 31 May 2022, management reassessed its related parties, identifying additional DTTL entities as
associates. These additional related parties have been reflected in the table above, including restating the comparative
amounts to be on the same basis. Group: Provisions of senvices to associates in 2021 has increased by £105 milllon and
Purchase of services from associates has (ncreased by £122 milion. LLP: Provisions of serdlces to associates in 2021 has
increased by £79 million and Purchase of services from associates has increased by £121 million

The provision of services to and from refated parties were on an arm's length basis. The amounts outstanding at year-end
are unsecured and are available to be settled in cash. These balances are non-interest bearing, No expense has been
recagnised in the period for bad or doubtful debes in respect of the amounts due from related parties,

Investment in Deloitte NSE Investments Limited

The LLP {and therefore the Group) has subscribed o different classes of non-voting redeemabie shares in Deloitte MSE
Investments Limited, a Deloitte NSE Group entity set up to hold Deloitte NSE Group investments in strategic projects. The
cumulative amount subscribed to date is E15.1 million, with £2.4 million subscribed for this financial year. For the
purposes of these financial statements, an amount of £1 million (2021: £1 million) was accounted for as a deemed
distribution to Deloitte NSE. The remaining amount of £1.4 million (2021: £3 milllan) is the fair value of this eguity
fnvastment.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Koy Managermient Personnel ('KMP') are those members who are responcible for planning, directing and contralling the
activities of the Group andfor the LLP, Where a membar of the KMP sits an both the UK and NSE Exgcutive Groups, only
the proportion of their profit share relating to their services provided to the Group or the LLP has been included,

Group

For the year ended 31 May 2022, KMP of the Group comprised 11 members (2021: 11 members) and their profit
entitlement was E19 million (2021; £18 million), At 31 May 2022, the amount due to the KMP of the Group is Enil {2021;
£0.9 million) and the amount due from them is £1.5 million [2021: £0.3 million).

LLP

For the year ended 31 May 2022, KMP of the LUP comprised 3 members [2021: 9 members) and their profit entitlement
was £16 million (2021: £14 million}. At 31 May 2022, the amount due to the KMP of the LLP is £nil (2021 £0.7 million] and
the amount due from them is £1.4 million [2021: £0.3 million).
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23. Group undertakings
Subsidiary undertakings

All subsiciaries make up accounts to 31 May and are consolidated within these financial statements. The associated
undertakings and joint operations provide management information at 31 May for the purposes of group reparting, All
entitics prepare accounts under uniform accounting policies and operate principally in their country of incorporation.

Entity name Country an Share class % darectly o held by
intarporalion ikl by LLP Group

egistered office: 1 New Streat Square, London, EC3A 3HO
ALCHE Production Limited England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares = 100
Brown Street Nominees Limited Emgland & Wabes  £1 ordinary shares . 100
Contractor Pay Limited England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares 100 100
D&T Comsulting Moldings Limited England & Wales  £1 ordinary "A" shares . 100
£1 ardinary 0" shares - 100
£1 ordinary "C' shares - 100
DE&T Pension Trustees Limibed Crgland & Wales L1 ordinary shares - 100
Dedoitte & Tauche Advisary Limited England & Wales L1 ordinary shares - 100
Deloitte & Touche Haldings Limited England & Wakes  £1 ordinary shares 100 100
Deloitte & Touche Pension Trustees Limited  England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Dekaitte India Services Levibed England & Wabes 1 ordinary shares - 100
Didaitte Inlefnatednal Services Limied Emgland & Wabkes  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Delaitte Management Services Limited England & Walkes  £1 ordindry shares Bl 100
Delaitte MCS Limated Empgland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Delaitte Pansions Sarvices Limitesd Empgland & Wales L1 oedinary shares - 100
Dedoitte PMP Stamer A Limited Emgland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Deloitte 54 Services Limited England & Wales  £1 grdinary shares 100 100
Deloltte Servioes Limited England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Deloitte Total Reward & Bemefits Umited Emgland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
hland Trustees | Midlands) Limited England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
tland Trustoes {Mortharnp Liméted England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
sland Trustees Limited England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
1G.H.T, Nominees England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Barket Gravity Limited England & Wales  £0001 ordinary shares . 100
£0001 'A' ordinary shares . 100
Monitor Company Europe England & Wales  £1 ordinary shares . 100
£1 Redeemable preference ‘A’ shares . 100
£1 Redeemable preference 'C shares . a1
Monéter Company LK Limited England & Wabkes L1 ordinary shares - 100
Bonitor Dedoitte Limited England & Wales L1 ordinary shares . 100
Morstrard Trustees Limited Empland & Wales £ ordinary shares = 100
Sperp Naminees Limited England & Wales  £1 ardinary shares - 100
Spero Trustee Company Emgland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares . 100
Spero Trustes I:Dl'l'lp-ll‘ry Eil‘l‘l‘lil‘l&l‘lﬂl‘l‘l En.glam:l B Wales £ ardinarny shares & 100
Spero Trustee Company Bristel Limited Empland & Wabes L1 ordinary shares - 100
Spicers Corpodate Finance Limited Emgland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Stonecutter Limited Emgland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Stenecutter Nomanees Limited Empland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
Stomecutter Trustees Limited Empland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares - 100
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23. Group undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Country on Share class % directly w hold by
intorporation hekd by LLP Group

Registered office: Hill Mowse 1 Little New Street, London, EC4A 3TR

Dedoitte Holdings Limited England & Wales E£1 ordinary shares c 100

Registered office: 3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 66D

Bland Trustees South West Uimited England & Wales £1 ordinary shares - 108

Registered officn: Lincoln Bullding, 27-45 Great Victorla Streat, Beliast, Morthomn Ireland, Northern Ireland, BT2 750

Etaim Limited Emgland & Wales  £1 ordinary A" shares - 10
£1 ordinary 8" shares - 100
£1 ordinary 'C' shares : 100

Registered office: The ©ld Courthouse, Athol Street, Dowglas, sk of Man, 1M1 1LD

Deloitte & Touche Services (0] Isho oof BAan £1 ordinary shares 100 100

Limited

Registered office: Gaspé House, 56-72 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE2 30T

Dedoitte & Touche Management [bersey] iersey £1 oedinary shares 10 10

Limited

Registered office: Kingyway House, Havilland Street, 5t Peter port, Guernsey, GY1 IHW

Dedoitte OIS Mominees Limited Guernsey . 100

Deloitte OIS Sharehalder Services Guernsey = 100

Limited

Registered office: Glategmy Court, Glategny Esplanade, 5t Peter Port, Guomsey, GYL1 1WR

Delaitte & Touche Managemant GuEnsey 100 11

{Gueerrmey ) Limited

Registered office: Old Pelice Station, Units 120,/3 Irish Tewn, GX11 Lag

Delaite Limited (Gibraliar) Gitiralar £l ordinary A" thares 1040 100
£1 erdinary B shares 100 100
£1 ordinary °C’ shares 100 100
£1 ordinary D' shares 108 100

Registered office: Plingstweidsirasse 11, 8005 Zhrich, Switzedand

Dedoitne Als Swilkarland CHF 100 ardinary shares - 100
CHF 1000 ardinary shanes - 100

Daboitte Consulting AG Switperiand CHF 1,000 ardinary shares - 100

Registered office: 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2, D2 AY2E, ireland

?;“;“J:.‘L“.ELEE!J.E‘{.EEALLEE“ Iredamd EUR 1 ardinary shares 100 100

Registered office: Box 160 6% 103 22 Stockholm

HWCHNE AR Sweden SEK 10 ordanary shares - 100

WONE Advertising AB Sweden SEK 01D ardinary shares. - 100

HWCNE Film AB Swhedan SEK 50 ondenary shares - 100

ACME Photography AB Sweden SEK 50 ordinary shares - 100

Registered office: Tulegatan 15, 113 53, Stockholm, Sweden

Debaitte MCS AR Tweden EUR 1 ordinary shares . 100

Registered office: Landstrasse 133, 94595 Triesen, Liechtenstein

Deloitte [Lischienstzin] &G Leschtermbein CHF 1,000 ardinary shares 1 EL]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 May 2022

23. Group undertakings (continued)

Entities in liguidation
The entities belaw are currently in voluntary strike off or liquidation:
Couniry on Share class % darecily % held by
incarparation hzbel by LLP Group
Registered office: & Snow HIll, London, ECLA 2aY
ClearViewi? Holdings Limited Emgland & wales  £0000 ordinary shares sl 104
ClearViewlP Limited England & Wales  £0001 ordinary ‘4’ shares . 100
£0001 ordénary 'B' shares 100
£0U01 ordinary 'C' shares . 1040
Deloitte OIS Limited England & Wales £y ordinary shares {voting) Ed &0
€4 ardinary shares {non-voting) B0 &G0
Delaitte FFP 1 LLP 1 England & Wales  Designated Membser 100 100
Delaitte FFP 2 LLP 1 England & Wales  Designated Membser 100 100
Dedaitte SLP Strcture 1 Limited Erpland & Wales  £1 ordinary shares 100 100
Dedaitte SLP Structure 2 Limited England & Wales  £1 ardinary shares 10 100
Registered office: Old Police Station, Units 120//3 irish Town, GX11 144
erchant Corporate Services Limited Gibraltar £1 ordinary shares - 1060
fegistered office: Newes Kranzler Eck, Kurflbrstendamm 23, Berlin, 10719, Germarny
ALHE GrnhH Germany EUR 1 ordinary shars - 100
Registered office: G0 Wills & Murphy, 1800-1631 Mckson Avenue, Kelowna, BC V1Y DBS, Canada
blarknt Gravity Propesitlon Design Canada CAD Ll prdinary shases 1
Canada Lud
Dwnership of entiy is 99.6% by Defoitie LLP. Bemaining §.4% /s keid by Deloithe SLP Struchure 1 Limited, 5o Group ownership b 100%,
Joint venture and associates
ntity name Cauntng on Share elais 5= directly % held by
incorporation held by LLP Group
Registered affioe: Hill Howse, 1 Little New Street, London, ECAA 3TR
Dednitie ERDC Lirmebed Empland & Wakes  £1 ordinary shares - 7
Deloitte European Suppart Services Limited  England & Wales 1 EUR ordinary shames - 51
DYGES Limited En!land & wales  E1 ordinary shares 63 63
Registered office: 12, Dr Annle Besant Road, Opp. Shivsagar Estate Werli Mumbai, Maharashitra, 200018 India
Deloitie Global Finsncial &dvisory India Irdia INR 10 ardinary shares d a3
Private Limited
Registered office: Glategny Court, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WR
OTME 2 LLP GUErnSey Designated Member 3 50
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Deloitte.

Deloitbe LLP is 2 imited lakdity partnership registered o England and
‘Wiales with registered namber DCI03575 and s registered office at
1 Mo St Sopuare, Lesvdon, ECAA ZHO, United Kingdom,

Daeloitte LLP i thve Urvited Kingdiom siflimoe of Dedoitge NEE LLP, & mismbsse
Frrn ol Delaitte Touche Tahmatsu Limsted, a LUK private comginy limited

by puarardes [“OTTL). DTTL and each of its rember frmes are legally
sEparate and independsnt ontities. DTTL and Delairte MSE LUP 80 not provids
aprvices 0o clisnis. FRease e werar delostie oo about 10 Isarn mess abou
i ghakal nitwark of mesber firms

D P22 Defaiite LLP, &l rights reserved,
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